Cocoon Holdings Limited
PEXSERERAT

(formerly known as Huge China Holdings Limited)
(I 72 B35 1 [ IR AT R 23 7] )

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(B2 FEB L MR 2 R 2N A])

(Stock Code fizfftss : 428)

SRRRRAR AT L) (L
AN 1)) [
—
_ i

1

~--&----__ 1] -" ‘

Sea— 2019
TR L v

AR
ANNUAL REPORT F#




This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is
available on the Company’s website at www.cocoon.holdings (the
“Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented
to receive the corporate communications of the Company (the
“Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website and who
for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the
annual report posted on the Company Website will promptly upon
request be sent the annual report in printed form free of charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means
of receipt (either in printed form or via the Company Website)
and/or language(s) (either English only or Chinese only or both
languages) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in
printed form, and/or to change their choice of the means of receipt
and/or language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in
writing to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or
by sending an email to the branch share registrar of the Company
in Hong Kong at cocoon.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive printed copy of the
Corporate Communications in either English or Chinese version
will receive both English and Chinese versions of this annual
report since both languages are bound together into one booklet.

KEFHP HXABEEHRKR ARG H
www.cocoon.holdings ([ "2 & 48k |) o

EEERRBERARABEBARABIEWERA RN
ABBA(TREERDMRER - A EAE SR ER
M THRARAEEBHHOFRAEMNRNE - R
ZRHER AL AEREZXRFRONFIA -

fi 3R] e B B R IR R U A RLE AL Y 73 = (AU ER
AREAMNERA - B BARRFEUIME AR B
M) RSHBERANEX ARG R CARSEH R’
XA) e

BREAUNZABHNEAABNEERDBLERLRS
B EAAPREFFBELARAA MU REBE
FE2FXERI8IFEE MALITME » =t L E
BARBNEBRNDBPEL Y E(BEH MU A
cocoon.ecom@computershare.com.hk) 42 i U BL A
FREOBIAHESR - R/ REREBZRIRA AR
AEF KR KEERA o

ERARFRZ LR PXIRTIEDFIRE —MFR - &
i [ SR %R 1 MR B 3 3 Hh SRR 2 A RE AR EN R AR
BRI BB REE SRR ZFR -



CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

NAEE
B
EIRE A R DA

RE - HEREARAWS

i
if:)3
H
=]
- of

N

oL
puj}

Kb oM 4
N IR
i

5

& of
Off

3
7
i
B
=
=
i
)
=
B
3

I 2 I
> o> 0
W ow ¥
B Bk S
o S

&
D> >

3

o
W
E:
S

£

25
36
49
70
78

79
80
81
83
176



Wu Ming Gai (Chairman)

S E(LE)

Chan Carman Wing Yan (Chief Executive Officer) R K AR (77 B 48 )
William Keith Jacobsen ERHE

Chen Albert BR 7 18

Wong Chung Yan Sammy =HC

Chan Man Yi R B

Leung Yin Ting RS

Jiang Qian ¥ S

Chan Man Yi (Chairman) BRI (L E)

Leung Yin Ting PUE

Wong Chung Yan Sammy el

Chan Man Yi (Chairman) BREE(EE)

Wong Chung Yan Sammy =R

Jiang Qian BT

Jiang Qian (Chairman) Ba(EmE)

Chan Man Yi PR S &

Leung Yin Ting P =t

Chen Albert R e 18

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited EFXKFHRITAR QA
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited FERIT(EB)BERAF
Bank of Communications Co., Limited RBRITRD AR LA
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited BERALBEERITARAA

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAIT



McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

3/F, Winbase Centre

208 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon

Walkers Corporate (Bermuda) Limited
Park Place, 55 Par-la-Ville Road
Third Floor, Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Room 14A

Fortune House

61 Connaught Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 428

EE(BR)GMELMARA A

¥ 2 51 Al
BB

2 FKIE 2085
BEE AP O3IE

B 5 8% B

Walkers Corporate (Bermuda) Limited

Park Place, 55 Par-la-Ville Road
Third Floor, Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

EBPIR
FFHEEF615%
BEKNE
14AZE

EBAPRBLEEZLHERAR
55

BT

ERXNEFR1835%
AL
171171251716 E

ERBEXHFABRAF 428

Annual Report 20195



The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) takes pleasure in
presenting the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (“Reporting Period”).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$8,988,000 as compared to
approximately HK$10,812,000 in the prior year, representing
a decrease of approximately 16.9%. The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to decrease of interest income during the year.
The Group recorded a realised loss of HK$9,903,000 (2018:
HK$45,350,000) and fair value loss of HK$9,025,000 (2018:
HK$10,817,000) on listed securities held by the Group. The Group
recorded a realised loss of HK$6,387,000 (2018: 10,770,000) and
an unrealised loss of HK$2,146,000 (2018: HK$3,681,000) on
unlisted securities (comprised of convertible bonds and private
equity fund designated at financial assets at FVTPL) held by
the Group during the year. During the year, impairment losses
of various loan notes of approximately HK$2,598,000 (2018:
HK$4,992,000) and deposits of approximately HK$538,000 (2018:
HK$351,000) were recognised. During the year, the loss on
disposal of certain loan notes was approximately HK$2,064,000
(2018: Nil) and the loss on disposal of private equity interest
designated at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income was HK$1,676,000 (2018: Nil). With the
impact of unfavourable performance of certain publicly traded
securities held by the Group and fair value loss of certain unlisted
securities during the year, the Group recorded loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$35,361,000 as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$78,458,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2019, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$165,716,000 (2018: HK$135,391,000). The
net assets significantly increased 22.4% when compared last
year is mainly due to the decrease in shareholder’s loan and
the effect of the rights issue completed during the year. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss decreased
from approximately HK$85,069,000 as at 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$26,806,000 as at 31 December 2019 and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$29,400,000 (2018: HK$35,176,000) was
recognised during the year.
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The external environment is of high relevance to the
economy and financial market in Hong Kong. In term of the slow
growth projections of Hong Kong and China and the outbreak of
coronavirus, the Group expects it is full of challenges in 2020.
Looking ahead to 2020, the Company will stay in focus to invest in
trading securities, private equity funds and private enterprises with
potential prospect. Our approach will keep timely and appropriate
investment strategies in response to the volatile market, in
order to enhance our investment portfolio and achieve net asset
appreciation. The Board will pay close attention to the macro
trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in China, Hong
Kong and overseas. The Company will continue to implement its
risk management policy with an aim to achieve stable returns on
investments for our shareholders.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Lastly, | would like to thank our dedicated employees for their
invaluable contributions and enthusiasm in their work. Their zeal
in discharging duties and responsibilities will ensure the success
of our Group.

Wu Ming Gai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March, 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
a revenue of HK$8,988,000 as compared to HK$10,812,000 in
the prior year, representing a decrease of approximately 16.9%.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to decrease of interest
income during the year. The Group recorded a realised loss
of HK$9,903,000 (2018: HK$45,350,000) and fair value loss of
HK$9,025,000 (2018: HK$10,817,000) on listed securities held by
the Group. The Group recorded a realised loss of approximately
HK$6,387,000 (2018: HK$10,770,000) and an unrealised loss of
approximately HK$2,146,000 (2018: HK$3,681,000) on unlisted
securities (comprised of convertible bonds and private equity
fund designated at financial assets at FVTPL) held by the Group
during the year. During the year, impairment losses of various
loan notes of approximately HK$2,598,000 (2018: HK$4,992,000)
and deposits of approximately HK$538,000 (2018: HK$351,000)
were recognised. During the year, the loss on disposal of certain
loan notes was approximately HK$2,064,000 (2018: Nil) and the
loss on disposal of private equity interest designated at financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income was
HK$1,676,000 (2018: Nil). With the impact of unfavourable
performance of certain publicly traded securities held by the
Group and fair value loss of certain unlisted securities during
the year, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$35,361,000 as compared to a
loss of approximately HK$78,458,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2019, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$165,716,000 (2018: HK$135,391,000). The
net assets significantly increased 22.4% when compared to the
prior year was mainly due to the decrease in shareholder’s loan
and the effect of the rights issue completed during the year. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss decreased
from approximately HK$85,069,000 as at 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$26,806,000 as at 31 December 2019 and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$29,400,000 (2018: HK$35,176,000) was
recognised during the year.
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The growth momentum of Hong Kong economy has slowed
since the beginning of 2018. The Hong Kong economy contracted
by 1.2% for 2019 as a whole, the first annual decline since 2009.
In the first half of 2019, the economy growth of Hong Kong was
only by 0.6% year-on-year amid softening global economic growth
and the trade war between United States of America (the “US”)
and China. The economy then worsened and recorded sharp
shrink of 2.8% and 2.9% respectively in the third and fourth
quarters.

China posted GDP growth 6.1 percent, the slowest pace in 29
years but still within the government’s target of 6 to 6.5 percent,
this was the weakest growth rate since the first quarter of 1992.

During the financial year, elevated US-China trade tensions
and the outbreak of coronavirus, the poor market sentiment
immersed throughout the global.

In 2020, the economy of Hong Kong and China are expected
to remain under pressure. Although the phase one trade deal
between China and the US eased trade tensions, existing tariffs
will remain in place.

The external environment is of high relevance to the economy
and financial market in Hong Kong. In term of the negative growth
projections of Hong Kong and slow growth projections of China,
the Group expects it is full of challenges in 2020. Because of the
outbreak of coronavirus in Hong Kong, the management of the
Company expects there will be an adverse impact to the Group
in coming months. However, our management will actively keep
monitoring the performance of the Group and assessing how
the impact to the Group, and will implement fitting strategy in a
timely manner. Looking ahead to 2020, the Company will stay
in focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had available funds of
approximately HK$28,187,000 which were mainly placed in banks
as general working capital. Bank balances held by the Group were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group had shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$165,716,000 at 31 December 2019 compared to
HK$135,391,000 at 31 December 2018, representing an increase
of approximately 22.4%.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$22,268,000 (2018: HK$57,654,000). The
gearing ratio for the Group was 13.4% (2018: 42.6%) which
represents the ratio of the Group’s borrowings to the net asset
value of the Group.

The Group did not have any capital expenditure commitment
as at 31 December 2019.

Save as the rights issue and the capital reorganisation
mentioned under the heading of “Fund raising activities” and
“Capital Reorganisation” below respectively, there was no
significant change in the Group’s capital structure for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAIT

RZB-AF+ZA=+—R0 XEEEAHD

& & 7%#%28,187,000/8 T * TEFMNBITIE—R

BEES AKERBEZRITERIEDUNETE
& -

AEEBR-_ZT—NhFEF+_A=+T—BZHRERE
& B #)165,716,0008 - MR =_ZFT—\F+ = A
=+ —H A%9135,391,000/5 7T * & /N 4922.4% o

—NWE+-ZA=+—8  KAEEEZEYD
22,268,000/% T (= Z — J\4F : 57,654,000/ 7T) ° A&
SECERKXR(AASEEREAEBEEFEZ
L&) B13.4% (=ZF — )\F : 42.6%) °

—NFE+ZA=+—R0  AEELEEM
BRI AIE o

BRTXIT&ERES] RIIRAEHE | AR
EBRABHEIN AEBEXAEBRBE_T-NF
T A=+—HLEFELESKRE -



On 21 September 2018, the Company and China Fund
Securities Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong Wealthy Trade
Limited) (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has
appointed the Placing Agent to procure, on a best efforts basis,
not less than six placees who were professional investors to
subscribe for up to 19,980,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) at a price of HK$1 per Share (the “Placing Shares”),
representing (i) approximately 20.0% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the Placing Agreement;
and (ii) approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Placing
Shares. The closing price of the Shares as quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 21
September 2018, being the date of the Placing Agreement, was
HK$0.495 per Share. The maximum net proceeds from the Placing
amounted to approximately HK$19,730,000 which was intended
to be utilised for investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities
in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$10,000,000 and
the remaining balance was intended to use for repayment of the
Group’s payables and as the Group’s general working capital. The
net price per Placing Share was approximately HK$0.99. Details
of the Placing were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 21 September 2018 and 12 October 2018.

Reference is made to (i) the announcements of the Company
dated 18 July 2019, 30 July 2019, 2 August 2019, 13 August
2019, 13 September 2019 and 18 October 2019, respectively
(the “Announcements”); (ii) the circular of the Company dated
21 August 2019 (the “Circular”); and (iii) the prospectus of the
Company dated 25 September 2019 (the “Prospectus”) in relation
to, amongst others, the Rights Issue. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms used herein shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the Announcements, Circular and Prospectus.

On 18 July 2019, the Company and the Underwriter entered
into the Underwriting Agreement in respect of the proposed
Rights Issue. The Board proposed to implement the Rights Issue
on the basis of two (2) Rights Shares for every one (1) Share
held on the Record Date at the Subscription Price of HK$0.28
per Rights Share to raise approximately HK$67.15 million before
expenses by issuing 239,817,900 Rights Shares to the Qualifying
Shareholders.
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The estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue would
be approximately HK$65.44 million (equivalent to a net price
of approximately HK$0.273 per Rights Share), among which (i)
approximately HK$30.00 million would be used for repayment
of the shareholders loan due to shareholder in the principal
amount of HK$30.00 million with interest rate at 8% per annum,
which would mature on 6 October 2019; (ii) approximately
HK$30.00 million would be used for investment in listed securities
and unlisted securities; and (iii) the remaining balance of
approximately HK$5.44 million would be used for general working
capital of the Group.

Details of the Rights Issue and Underwriting Agreement were
set out in the Announcements, Circular and Prospectus.
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As at 31 December 2019, the net proceeds of the Rights Issue
and the Placing had been utilised as follows:

R=-ZT—
FIRCE!

BFHEEERLT ¢

Intended use of net

NET=H=+r—H"

HBRREEEE

Date of announcement Event Net proceeds raised proceeds Actual use of proceeds
NEBH E ] EEMBRERE FERERERTAR FSJEERAZR
18 July 2019 (completed Rights Issue on the basis of Approximately (i) Repayment for (i) Approximately

on 21 October 2019)

—ZT-hFLATN\H
(R=ZT—-h&E+A

—+—BxEK)

two Rights Shares at the HK$65,440,000
subscription price HK$0.28
per Rights Shares for every

one existing Share

%ﬁ%i%ﬁ*%ﬁﬁh@Tﬁ
BB R ERD - R %1%#
Wﬁ%%ﬁa%mmmf

#)65,440,0007% 7T

(ii)

(iii)

approximately
HK$30 million
outstanding principal
Shareholder’s Loan
with interest 8% per
annum

Approximately
HK$30 million for
the investment in
listed securities and
unlisted securities

Approximately
HK$5.44 million for
general working

(ii)

(iif)

HK$33.9 million was
used to settle the
Shareholder’s Loan

HK$30 million will be
utilised as intended
within next 12
months of the date
of this report

Approximately
HK$1.54 million was
used for operating

capital of the Group expenses
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#1.548 88 TR E
R

21 September 2018
(completed on 12
October 2018)
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Placing of 19,980,000 ordinary
Shares under general
mandate
of the Company

Approximately
HK$19,730,000

READF - REREE
19,980,000 & i i

#719,730,0005% 7T

Approxmately
HK$10,000,000 for

Approximately
HK$10,000,000 was

used for investment in
the unlisted securities

investment in the
listed and/or unlisted
securities

(ii) Approximately
HK$9,730,000 will be
used for repayment
of the Group’s
payables and as

Approximately
HK$9,730,000 was
used for repayment
of the Group’s
payable and operating

the Group’s general expenses
working capital
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On 23 January 2019, the Company announced to implement
the capital reorganisation after the change of domicile becoming
effective as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iii

~

Reduction of Share Premium — the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company was reduced to nil and the credit arising
from such reduction was transferred to an existing
account of the Company designated as the contributed
surplus account of the Company. Thereafter, the credit
of the contributed surplus account of the Company was
applied in full towards offsetting the entire amount of the
accumulated losses of the Company as permitted under
the New Bye-laws and the Companies Act.

Capital Reduction — the par value of each of the issued
existing shares of the Company was reduced from
HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 per issued existing share of the
Company by the cancellation of the paid up share capital
of the Company to the extent of HK$0.90 per issued
existing share of the Company by way of a reduction of
capital, such that the par value of the issued existing
shares of the Company was reduced to HK$0.10 each.
The credit arising from the Capital Reduction was
transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company within the meaning of the Companies Act
and was applied for such purposes as permitted by all
applicable laws and the Memorandum of Continuance
and the New Bye-laws of the Company and as the Board
considers appropriate; and

Share sub-division — immediately following the Capital
Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued existing
Shares with par value of HK$1.00 each was subdivided
into 10 new Shares with par value of HK$0.10 each.

The Capital Reorganisation had become effective after 9:00
a.m. (Hong Kong time) on 18 April 2019. Details of the above were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 23 January
2019, 25 January 2019, 11 March 2019, 4 April 2019 and 23 April
2019 and the circular of the Company dated 4 February 2019.
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The Company has been de-registered in the Cayman Islands
and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda and the change of domicile became
effective on 2 April 2019 (Hong Kong time) (the “Change of
Domicile”). Details of the Change of Domicile were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 23 January 2019, 25
January 2019 and 4 April 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated 4 February 2019.

The Company is an investment company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange under Chapter 21 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding and the Group is principally engaged in
investments in securities listed on recognised stock exchanges
and unlisted investments with potential for earning growth and
capital appreciation. It is the corporate strategy of the Group
to strengthen its existing businesses and continue its focus
on financing future investment opportunities domestically and
internationally to achieve financial growth for the Group and to
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Company held ten investments as of 31 December
2019, comprising five equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one
unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong, three loan notes issued
by private entities in China and one item of interests in a private
entity in Anguilla. Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Company discloses its ten largest
investments and all individual investments with value exceeding
5% of the Company’s gross assets with brief description of the
investee companies are provided in the notes 22 to 24 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report and the section
under “significant investments held and their performance”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$8,988,000 as compared to
approximately HK$10,812,000 in the prior year, representing a
decrease of approximately 16.9%. The decrement in revenue was
due to decrease of interest income from unlisted investments
during the year.

With the impact of continuously unfavourable performance
of certain publicly traded securities held by the Group, the
Group recorded a realised loss of approximately HK$9,903,000
(2018: HK$45,350,000) and an unrealised loss of approximately
HK$9,025,000 (2018: HK$10,817,000) on listed securities during
the year. The Group recorded a realised loss of approximately
HK$1,845,000 (2018: HK$10,770,000) and an unrealised loss
of HK$2,146,000 (2018: HK$3,681,000) on unlisted convertible
bonds/private equity fund during the year. During the year,
the loss on disposal of certain loan notes was approximately
HK$2,064,000 (2018: Nil) and the loss on disposal of private
equity interest designated at financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income was HK$1,676,000 (2018:
Nil). Meanwhile, impairment losses of various loan notes of
approximately HK$2,598,000 and deposits of approximately
HK$538,000 were recognized during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held trading securities
of approximately HK$7,286,000 (2018: HK$31,812,000). The
decrease was mainly due to the disposal of certain trading
securities during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s unlisted investments
(comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and loans and receivables) were approximately HK$129,977,000
(2018: HK$144,460,000). Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments was HK$20,874,000 (2018: HK$15,764,000).

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of
Listing Rules, the Company discloses its ten largest investments
and all individual investments with value exceeding 5% of the
Company’s gross assets with brief description of the investee
companies as follows and as disclosed in note 22 to 24 to the
consolidated financial statements:
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E[EBA X is a private entity established in PRC, which
is principally engaged in developing and designing mechanical
equipment. EE B A B % has been developing and producing
intelligent garbage collection systems and production equipment
for nearly 10 years. The Group held a loan note issued by #£[&
B F B 2 with fixed interest at 10% per annum (“LN1”) and was
measured at amortised cost. The interest income recognised
of the Group from the LN1 for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$2.4 million (2018: HK$316,000).
The impairment loss recognised for the year was approximately
HK$730,000. Based on the latest management account of & [# &
Fi B 2, the unaudited net profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately RMB212,000 and its net asset value as
at 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB13.0 million. The
Board considers the industry of intelligent garbage collection
systems and production equipment have great prosperity and
the financial performance of & [# i F & % was satisfactory. The
Board also expected that iZ [ ifi F§ & 5% will keep the growth trend
in future. Therefore, holding the fixed interest income from loan
notes was interest of the Group to obtain a stable cash inflow.
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HF Group a private entity established in Hong Kong, which is
principally engaged in securities brokerage business and asset
management business. Hong Kong stock market is one of the
biggest stock market of the world, total capital raised from the
Hong Kong securities market through IPOs constantly stayed top
three in the world for the past decade. Although the securities
brokerage business was competitive, more business from
launching Shanghai Connect and Shenzhen Connect to create
more room and opportunities for securities brokerage business.
Above-mentioned the new co-operation of Hong Kong securities
market and China securities market have created opportunities
for assets management business as well. The Group held a
convertible bond issued by HF Group with fixed interest at 8%
per annum (“CB”). The interest income recognised of the Group
from CB for year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$576,000 (2018: HK$576,000). The unrealised loss recognised
for the year was approximately HK$2.1 million (2018: HK$1.9
million). Based on the latest management account of HF Group,
the unaudited net loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
was HK$15.0 million and its net asset value as at 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$52.6 million. As keen competition of
brokerage securities business in Hong Kong, fluctuation of Hong
Kong stock market and the geopolitical environment in Hong Kong
recently, a result of loss making for the year ended 31 December
2018 of HF Group. As the net asset value of HF Group was much
higher than the principal amount of CB, the Group considers that
the default risk of the CB was low. In addition, CB is continuing to
generate interest income for the Group up to its expiry date.
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The Group had subscribed a loan note issued by Al /& & 1A
B which was private entity established in the PRC, which was
principally engaged in private flight service and management
platform in China. A7/ & {4 5 was issued a loan note (“LN3”) in
November 2019 to the Company and would mature after two years
from date of issue. LN3 bears fixed interest at 5% per annum and
is measured at amortised cost. The interest income recognised of
the Group for the year from LN3 was approximately HK$244,000.
The impairment loss recognised for the year was approximately
HK$420,000. Based on the management account of BT & {15 as
at 30 November 2019, the unaudited net profit was approximately
RMB25.9 million. As at 30 November 2019, the net asset value
of RIS E{HE was RMB68.6 million. The Board considers the
industry of private flight service in China has bright future and the
Board expects that Af/& & {4 & will keep the growth trend in the
coming future. Therefore, holding the fixed interest income from
the LN3 was in the interest of the Group to obtain a stable cash
inflow.

Perfect Path is a private entity incorporated in Anguilla, which
principally engaged in gold mining business. The Group held 20%
of equity interest of Perfect Path, despite the Group held 20%
of the voting power in Perfect Path, however, under contractual
arrangements, the other shareholders control the composition
of the board of directors and have control over Perfect Path.
Perfect Path still not deployed their business therefore no income
generated during the year ended 31 December 2019. Perfect
Path owns a gold mine in Thailand. No income was generated
during the year ended 31 December 2019 since Perfect Path still
not deployed their business. The net asset value of Perfect Path
as at 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$153.5 million.
The fair value gain recognised for the year was approximately
HK$400,000. Perfect Path will put into production after
infrastructure to be ready which is expected to be done after 3
years. The gold price has experienced a general increase over
the past decade, representing a compound annual growth rate
of 2.64% during 2008 to 2018. The Board considers that the gold
price will be in the same trend with the past decade and therefore,
the Group can enjoy the appreciation of gold mine holding by
Perfect Path by gold price rising.
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Classified is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 8232). Classified is principally engaged in restaurant
operations in Hong Kong. Based on the latest published quarterly
report for the nine months ended 30 September 2019, the net
loss for the period was approximately HK$10.9 million comparing
with the net loss for the same period last year was approximately
HK$15.6 million, the decrease of net loss of Classified was mainly
due to the decrease in staff costs, property rentals and related
expenses and depreciation, which were primarily attributable
to the closure of the bakery business and two “Classified”
restaurants in 2018. Moreover, there was no impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment during the nine months ended 30
September 2019 of Classified. The net asset value of Classified
as at 30 September 2019 was approximately HK$80.0 million. No
dividend was received by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil). Classified restaurants are a collection
of casual European cafés specializing in artisan breads, cheeses
and boutique wines, and are renowned for their breakfast and all-
day dining menu. Offering casual seating areas in most locations,
Classified encourages neighbourhood street-level interaction.
Classified has over ten restaurants in Hong Kong mainly in
commercial area. According to the interim report of Classified
for the six months ended 30 June 2018, they plan to i) open four
new restaurants; ii) enhance and upgrade our existing restaurant
facilities and iii) enhance premium food and fine wine programme
in order to entice higher spending customers to visit restaurants.
The Board believes the strategy are good fit with the consumer
market and the performance of Classified became better, the
Group would hold the investment in Classified and will closely
monitor the performance of Classified.
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On Real is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 8245). On Real is a two-way radio product designer
and manufacturer established in 2001. On Real derived
revenue principally from designing, manufacturing and selling
two-way radios and baby monitor products on original design
manufacturing basis. Based on the latest published quarterly
report for the nine months ended 31 December 2019 of On Real,
the net loss for the nine months ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$6.4 million comparing with the net profit of
approximately HK$3.3 million for the nine months ended 31
December 2018, primarily due to the increase in administrative
expenses. The net asset value of On Real as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$60.0 million. No dividend was
received by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil). According to the quarterly report of On Real for the
nine months ended 31 December 2019, approximately 50.8%
of the total revenue were derived from the US market. The US
market of two-way radio and baby monitor were the largest market
in the world and it was appropriate marketing strategy of On Real
to focus on the US market. The Board appreciated the effective
marketing strategy of On Real and would hold the investment in
On Real to earn the capital appreciation and the Group will closely
monitor the performance of On Real in the future.
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Evershine is a company incorporated in Hong Kong which
is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8022).
Evershine is principally engaged in trading of goods, design
and trade of customized window frames, doors and wardrobes,
building construction, property development, sales and leasing of
properties, provision of money lending business and development
of mobile games, game publishing, applications, related
intellectual property platform and provision of related solutions
and construction and operation of cemetery in Hong Kong, China
and Republic of Turkey. Based on the quarterly report for the
nine months ended 30 September 2019 of Evershine, the net loss
for the period was approximately HK$20.8 million. Comparing
with the net loss of approximately HK$101.0 million for the nine
months ended 30 September 2018, the reduction of the net loss
of Evershine was mainly attributable to (i) new furniture business
in China; (ii) start its property sales in Republic of Turkey; and
(iii) the fair value gain on convertible notes and derivative. The
net asset value of Evershine as at 30 September 2019 was
approximately HK$114.1 million. No dividend was received by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019. The Board
believes that Evershine the significant reduction of net loss was a
good sight and therefore the Group would hold the investment in
Evershine and will closely monitor the performance of Evershine.

CCD is a company incorporated in Bermuda which is listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8078). CCD is principally
engaged in cultural and entertainment business in China. Based
on the interim report for the six months ended 31 December 2019
of CCD, the net loss for the period was approximately HK$145.2
million. Comparing with the net loss of approximately HK$97.1
million for the six months ended 31 December 2018, the increase
of the net loss of CCD was mainly attributable to the net effect
of (i) the significant increase in selling and distribution costs by
approximately HK$60.0 million; (ii) the increase in finance costs
by approximately HK$35.3 million; and (iii) the loss in fair value
of investment at fair value through profit or loss approximately
HK$5.3 million (31 December 2018: Gain HK$26.6 million).
The net asset value of CCD as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$15.2 million. No dividend was received by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019. The Board
believes that the cultural and entertainment market in China can
recover soon and the investment in CCD by the Group was not
significant amount, therefore the Group would hold the investment
in CCD and will closely monitor the performance of CCD.
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Prime is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands which is
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8379). Prime
is principally engaged in sales of biometrics identification devices
and other devices and accessories and provision of auxiliary
and other services. Based on the quarterly report for the nine
months ended 31 December 2019 of Prime, the net loss for the
period was approximately HK$4.6 million. Comparing with the net
loss of approximately HK$2.2 million for the nine months ended
31 December 2018, the increase of the net loss of Prime was
mainly attributable to (i) the administrative expenses increased
by approximately HK$1.5 million; and (ii) gross profit decreased
by approximately HK$1.3 million. The net asset value of Prime
as at 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$90.2 million.
No dividend was received by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019. The Board believes that the biometrics
technology is the global trend and the investment in Prime by
the Group was not significant amount and therefore the Group
would hold the investment in Prime and will closely monitor the
performance of Prime.
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REREMREEYS EREZHE_ZT—NLF+=
A=+—HBULENAEANEERSE  HABRFED
B46E BB T BHE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HL
NWEANEEEFENR22BEE ST  EXHEIEF
BEMDEZHROITHRAIIEMO1.58 8B T
Ei)EFMBRPDOIIEEE TR -ELXZR = —N
F+ZA=Z+T—"HHNEEZFENARW2BEESTT - 1
BE-ZE-hE+-_A=+—BLEERN x£H
BEKRDRRKE - BEERE - £WHB M2 KB
P AAEEREZHNRESTEKR AEEBEFE
REZHREL KRB ETEZHRE -

Annual Report 20195



EEBEKM is a private entity established in PRC, which
is principally engaged in providing integrated R&D, design,
sales and after-sales service in packaging equipment. In the
past years, the = [& & & # # was developing and producing
intelligent air traffic control aircraft, which was an important tool
for the development of air traffic control technology in China’s
civil aviation airports. The Group held a loan note issued by #[&
BEM with fixed interest at 10% per annum (“LN2") and was
measured at amortised cost. The interest income recognised
of the Group from LN2 for the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately HK$2.4 million (2018: HK$316,000). The
impairment loss recognised for the year was approximately
HK$917,000. Based on the latest management account of
B & # # #, the unaudited net profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB1,055,000 and its net asset value as
at 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB14.4 million. The
packaging equipment market was set to grow from its current
market value of more than US$38 billion to more than US$47
billion by 2024, according to a new research report from Global
Market Insights Inc. Demand for packaging equipment is primarily
driven by the development of energy-efficient equipment,
increasing adoption of automated packaging machines and
consumer demand for personal care goods. The Board considered
that the packaging equipment industry has great potential, and
the financial performance was same as the expectation and also
expected that 2 £ % # 4 will keep the growth trend in future.
Therefore, holding the fixed interest income from loan notes was
interest of the Group to obtain a stable cash inflow.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 3 full-
time employees, including the executive directors of the Company.
Employees’ remuneration are fixed and determined with reference
to the market remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company for non-executive
directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and that
for the employees, including the executive directors and senior
management, is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties and in line with market practice.
The remuneration policy is to ensure that the pay levels are
competitive and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees. No director, or any of his associates, or executive is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The key components of the Company’s remuneration package
include basic salary plus other allowances, discretionary cash
bonus and mandatory provident fund. As a long-term incentive
plan and with the aim at motivating employees in the continued
pursuit of the Company’s goal and objectives.

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Review of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
covering major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

E—NF+-A=+—H AEEHXBE3E
2RBE  BEARFNTEE -EEMESREEE
B D2RMSREERE -

RABFERATEEIHMERERR  BREZFZS
AREAR T?x)\E’JEﬁ'EJA’E@JE%J%W;' (=3=1
(BEATEFREREBE) 2FMRRA R - #
1%%%1/\2@)1‘\%551%@%&%%@@5 + 30 BT 5 R I —
HoFHBREREBHESKTARSE N  EERR
5l HERKDES  -EFHHTMBBEALHITR
AB HIAB2BTEEATOME -

RABFMES 2 T EAXRTE O BREEHFMEM
R RE *@’\J%fﬁi\?ﬁl&éﬁ%w HRAEE - FREMAE
itE REBEEAEHERARANBEREN -

§$A7¥Ku/b/\ﬁ,\{£6€1%zﬁ AfEFREEREAN
Y [ B EE&W‘BEFTI% meoAEERREERNA
BEEEZGFORFTRECEERARREEELART
EEANEE  KEREREBAMRANKRA - BIEHE
e R RRERSERERFITENMBE RS
A ANEE HR &AET%Q%%EW%%
WE B - B RS E R EIR RN E TR
MRMEFTEMBEE  BEFEERaAETEULE
% B IR BAE o AM@&W“BWE%MLEK‘E%@@
FEHBR KA iﬁkii%ﬁﬁﬁ']ﬂ BERgE#HTE
EE AR KRERM YTE%T’EH:':AEW# BEERE o

Annual Report 20195



The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defense, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defense, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defense is effective. As the final
line of defense, the Audit Committee of the Company, with the
professional advices and opinions from the external professional
consultant by whom internal audit work of the Group was
conducted on annual basis, ensures that the first and second
lines of defense are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken by the external professional consultants, the
external auditor also assessed the adequacy and effectiveness
of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of
their statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s
recommendations are adopted and enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls will be made.

The Group has no significant exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and, therefore, did not employ any
financial instruments to hedge such exposures.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s trading securities of
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,715,000 (2018: Nil) were
pledged to a securities broker to secure margin loan borrowed by
the Group.

Save as disclosed in in this report, the Group did not have
other plan for material investments or acquisition of material
capital assets as at 31 December 2019.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
(the “ESG Report”) has been prepared under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). It sets out the
Group’s actions and performance on sustainability issues in a
transparent and open manner with the intention of increasing
stakeholders’ confidence in and understanding of the Group.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability. Its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Group are investments in
securities listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with potential for earning growth and capital
appreciation. The Group mainly invests Hong Kong listed
companies and unlisted companies including but not limited
to real estate property, financial and electronic payment
service providers. This ESG Report covers the Group’s overall
performance in two subject areas, namely, Environmental and
Social of the business operations in Hong Kong from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “year” or “2019”), unless
otherwise stated.

To identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
engagement sessions. For instance, investors could voice out
their concern and view on the Group’s policies, annual reports,
financial statements, circulars, announcements and notices via
email address provided on the Company’s website, or through
annual general meeting. In addition, the Company also set up
a whistleblowing hotline to enable the stakeholders to discuss
and review areas of attention which could help the business of
the Group to meet its potential growth and be prepared for future
challenges.

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on the approach
and performance of ESG via the email address of cs@cocoon.
holdings.
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The Group is focusing to unlock the value of emerging
companies both in China and Hong Kong by directly invest in
emerging private and listed companies in Hong Kong, with the
emphasis on those focusing on high growth from the domestic
market.

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders and enhances
shareholder’s value. The Group is committed to accounting for
its shareholders with a highly transparent and open attitude. The
Group also holds a high standard in business ethics and invests
in sustainable businesses. The Group is committed to improve
quality of the communities and the environment, whilst providing
long-term returns to its stakeholders.

The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Guide
to be assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be

AEBFEINBBEXRRERNEEFTEANLAR
EARARKEBERTEEEEMEARNER T2
ZENENTEHENRERAT -
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TRIFRE HEREABREEINDAFTE
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material to the Group.

BonEkEBEA -

(BIR HER HEAEEMEE
ESG Aspects as set forth in ERBERSIDAFEM  Material ESG issues for the RERANERE -
ESG Guide RBRE #HBRERED Group HERERRE
(A) Environmental (A) R%E
A1 Emissions Al BERRY Emission from town gas or BRI TERERIEN
Vehicle
A2 Use of Resources A2 BR{EA Use of energy and paper F AR &K R
A3 Environment and Natural A3 IRIENR KA EIR  Air pollution ERISHE
Resources
(B) Social (B) # &
B1 Employment B1 EfE Labour practices AT HEE
B2 Health and Safety B2 i@ ® Workplace health and safety TR BERERZ 2
B3 Development and B3 #RE &iFII Employee development and EBE#HR RIEI
Training training
B4 Labour Standards B4 & T %8| Anti-child and forced labour REIREHST
B5 Supply Chain B5 ftpEsEEE Supply chain management e EE IR
Management
B6 Product Responsibility B6 EmaEfF Product responsibility EmEE
B7 Anti-corruption B7 RES Anti-corruption, fraud prevention & &35 ~ [ 1F#5F & &%

and anti-money laundering

B8

Community Investment

B8 #mix&E
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Community programs, employee
volunteering and donation
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The Group considers environmental protection an essential
component of sustainable and responsible business. The Group
strives to negative impacts on the environment and to seek
environmental-friendly methods of operation.

Type of emission sources that the Group involved during the
year was mainly electricity and paper. The Group’s business did
not involve in production-related air, water, and land pollutions
which are regulated under national laws and regulations. There
were no water consumption and packaging materials involved in
the Group’s business operation. During the year, the total floor
area coverage of the Group was around 50m? (2018: 115.8m?2).

Since the Company did not have neither town fuel and town
gas consumption nor motor vehicle during the year, therefore no
emissions data applied.
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KPI

BARENER
% increase/
2019 2018 Unit (decrease)
—E-AEF —ZE-N\F By #gm CR2) %
Scope 1 g E1
Direct Emission H # HF N/A 7138 F N/A 738 A Tonnes M —
Scope 2 g1 E2
Indirect
Emission 4 Bk R 3.53 3.63 Tonnes M (3%)
Scope 3 EE3
Other indirect
Emission H At 8 42 BE 5.16 1.72 Tonnes M 200%
Total &5t 8.69 5.36 Tonnes M 62%
During the year, there was 8.69 tonnes (2018: 5.36 tonnes) REAFEN AEE KL TP T 8.69MF
of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly carbon (ZZE—NF 53N _FtmRESLETRE(E
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s ZEr-_Stix FHEMNELER) AEEBNFE
operation. The annual emission intensity of the Group during the R EEABTAKOITHE _StE8(ZE—N
year was 0.17 tCO2e/m? (2018: 0.05 tCO2e/m?). F:HBFEFKOBE_AI/ILHES) °
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The Group generated no hazardous waste in its operation.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group’s operation was mainly
office paper but the management of the Group believed that the
impact of non-hazardous waste arose from the waste paper is
insignificant.

The Group practices paper saving initiatives, such as
encouraging employees to use duplex printing for internal
documents and adopt environmental-friendly photocopier. The
Group strives to tackle the paper wastage problems in offices
by establishing a paperless office. Hence, the Group advocates
electronic storage and communication, such as receiving fax by
email instead of printing, and delivering reports to shareholders in
electronic copies.

Apart from reducing paper waste at source, paper recycling
also contributes to conserving resources such as forests, energy
and water. To efficiently recycle used paper, waste segregation
and collection are particularly important. The Group provides
ample facilities and procedures for paper waste collection so as to
enhance recycling efficiency.

During the year, the electricity consumption of the Group
was 6,083kWh (2018: 6,723kWh). The decrease of electricity
consumption was mainly the result of the Group encouraged its
staff to adopt energy saving measures (such as switching off
unnecessary lighting and electronic appliances) through reminders
and emails.
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The air pollution is mainly produced by photocopiers, stale air
drawn in from outside through poorly located fresh air inlets and
bacteria that enter the office.

In order to improve the indoor air quality, a range of air
pollution emission measures have been implemented by the
Group and they were:

* Ensure air inlets are away from any source of pollutants
and sufficient ventilation systems;

+ Clean all air units regularly (e.g. air inlets, air outlets and
filters); and

* Perform regular maintenance on carpet and furniture
upholstery.

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations for the year.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retain talents. The Group possesses a Remuneration
Committee, which regularly reviews its remuneration policy. The
Remuneration Committee ensures packages offered by the Group
are appealing to employees and in line with the market trend.
The Group had a total number of 3 (2018: 4) employees as of 31
December 2019, in which 100% was full time staff in Hong Kong.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRERAT

TEREEAFTEMRENE  WINABAULEXRED
FETRAODHERNSEEIAUREAFAETH
HEEE -

*

AREENEZRER  ASEELENTZESE
ERBEREER DR A

s MERERODEMEMISAVERERECH

BB E R

o THNERFTA =AM (H
KBRS &

ERO - -H&EO

s TEHEMTWHMHBRREBRMHRE -

RAFEERN  TBEFRBERRBINDTER

KEI%TE RE M BAKS  HER
BHEFE ARSI RBBAS - AEERBEFHEE
@’E%Waﬁﬁwﬁ YHZEoRERASEA
124 5B A5 %%ﬁ%ﬂﬁwaﬁ'mﬁaﬁ%@
PoBEET-NFFTA=T—8  FTEEHAES
ZBEB(ZE—N\F 4%) 2BAEEFBLEHZ
BET-



Age Group FHeA R
0-15 0=155%
16-18 16 21875%
19-30 19E3073%
31-45 312 455%
46-60 4675% 260757
=61/>61 61553k A £
Total & &f

By gender &5l
Under employment % 1E

Employees are entitled to discretionary cash bonus
and mandatory provident fund. Additional fringe benefits
include office insurance, employee compensation
insurance, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.
Various types of paid leave are also offered on top of
statutory requirement including annual leave, sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave and wedding leave. Employees
working overtime are entitled to overtime allowance and
compensation by time off. The Group may also at its sole
discretion, to grant share options to employees as a long-
term incentive aiming to motivate employees pursuing
Group’s goal and objectives. Employees including
directors can subscribe shares of the Company based on
their performance and contribution to the Group.

The Group committed to ensure safe and healthy
working environment for its employees and to inspire and
strengthens workforce regardless of their age, gender and
ethnical backgrounds.

2019 2018
—®-nEF —2-N\F
Male Female Male Female
5 z 5 z
0% 0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0% 25%
33% 67% 50% 0%
0% 0% 25% 0%
0% 0% 0% 0%
33% 67% 75% 25%
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\HF
Male Female Male Female
2] z 3 z
33% 67% 75% 25%
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Age Group F ¥ 4 Bl
0-15 0=15%%
16-18 16 21875%
19-30 19E3073%
31-45 31E455%
46-60 46 5% £ 6055%
=61/>61 61553k A £
Total A&

By gender &% Bl
Resigned staff BBET

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured
and caring environment to its employees to raise their
sense of belonging and work efficiency at the Group.

The Group regularly provides notices to remind employees on
health and safety measures at work, such be guidelines on using
electronic appliances.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance
case regarding violation of relevant laws and regulations on
occupational health and safety.

Health and Safety REHEZZ
Number of work- ETIEE &I T 8T

related fatalities
Lost days due to work FE T{EmiE LK
injury IERH
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2019
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34% 17%
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The package offered by the Group in relation to development
and training includes training covering topics of business
operations, policy and procedures of the Group, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director. Ongoing trainings,
briefings and seminars would also be provided to staff after the
induction to refresh their professional knowledge and skills.

In addition to above, the Group also encourages and supports
employees’ personal development through attending external
trainings and special early leave would be granted for training
purpose. Thus, various types of suitable seminars or training
courses will be recommended to employees via email and they
can choose either registered personally or through the Company.

The Group also provides communication channel to its
employees. Notices, emails, team briefings serve as the major
channels of communication among the management and frontline
staff. Performance appraisals and annual surveys also provided
platforms for the management and frontline staff to evaluate their
performances and voice out their expectations to the Group’s
future development.

No child or forced labour were employed in the Group’s
operations during the year which was in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong in
terms of employment management.

The Group lists specific requirements on advertisement to
hire the most suitable candidate. All resume, original identification
card, original certificate should be first checked by human
resources (HR) department during interview. HR department also
contacts candidate’s preceded employer for reference.

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, race, sexual orientation, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law. The Group also
appreciates the importance of cultural diversity in the development
of the Group, and employs employees in a wide range of ages,
genders, and ethnicities.
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In particular, the Group adopted a Board Diversity function
under which the Board composition includes members from with
different skills, industry knowledge and experience, education,
background and other qualities without discrimination.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour laws.

The Group has policy in place on obtaining quotations from
more than one supplier for procurement of all equipment and
products.

As stated in the Group’s Employee Manual, insider
information is prohibited to disclose to third party, and so
consumer data and privacy matters relating to services are
protected. The Group’s business operation did not involve in any
product or service related complaints.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violations of relevant laws and regulations on product
responsibility and data privacy during the year.

The Group commits to managing all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness as its
core values. All directors and employees are required to strictly
follow the Group’s policy to prevent potential bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Employees are regularly reminded
about anti-corruption policies through memos. Whistle-blowing
procedures on misconduct and malpractice (including corruption)
are also established in the Group’s policy. When suspicious case
is received, the Group would undergo investigation procedures
with secured protection on complainant’s confidentially.

To maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
the Group acknowledged the importance of enhancing its
transparency to the community. The community is regularly
informed of updated news and directions of the Group through
circulars, announcements and annual reports posted on the
Company’s website. The Group is currently planning its direction
on focus area of community engagement and types of resources
to be contributed.
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The Group has conducted the ESG report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social, Governmental Reporting Guide
(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules), all the information available
for the reporting period are included in this report. The Group
is committed to continue the ESG reporting on a regular basis
and to improve on policies and procedures to the management,
measurement and monitoring system of the ESG related
strategies that will facilitate a more sustainable business growth.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the year are investments in securities listed on recognised
stock exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s revenue for the year comprised interest earned
from bank deposits, loans and receivables and convertible bonds.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and
the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion & Analysis” from pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 24 of
this annual report respectively. The outlook of the Company’s
business is discussed in the “Chairman Statement” from pages
4 to 5 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this
annual report particularly in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2019, can
be found in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental policies and performance are discussed in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” from pages 25 to
35 of this annual report.
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The Group’s investments are partially carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
while the Company itself was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability and continued in Bermuda with limited liability
with its shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Bermuda,
the British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date
of this annual report, we have complied in material respects with
the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands,
where applicable, and Bermuda, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the Group.

As the Group principally engages in investments in listed
and unlisted securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be
involved in the operation of business. The investee companies
and the investment manager are good working partners creating
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide favourable career
development opportunities for its employees.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 78.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 80 and note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
and under the heading of “Fund raising activities” and “Capital
Reorganization” in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis”.

No distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December
2019, according to the Companies Act of Bermuda.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or applicable laws of Bermuda.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 176.

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year.

The Company does not have share option scheme.

Save for disclosed in the section “Fund raising activities”, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issues shares
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Wu Ming Gai

Chan Carman Wing Yan (appointed on 25 February 2019)
Wong Chung Yan Sammy

William Keith Jacobsen

Chen Albert

Chan Man Yi

Leung Yin Ting

Jiang Qian

Chau Wai Hing (resigned on 18 February 2019)

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”)
and with the recommendation of the nomination committee of
the Company, Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, Mr. Wong Chung Yan
Sammy, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Jiang Qian, being the longest
in office, shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, Mr. Chen Albert and Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy are non-executive Directors.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Jiang Qian are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence of the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent of the
Company.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Mr. Wu Ming Gai’s interest in contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The Bye-Laws provides that every director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all liability
incurred by him as such director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the directors and officers of the Company
and its subsidiaries. Such insurance was in force during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and remained in force as of the date of
this annual report
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Brief biographical details of Directors are set out below:

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, aged 44, joined the Company in July
2015. He was re-designated from a non-executive director to
an executive director of the Company effective from 1 March
2016 and appointed as the chairman of the board of directors
of the Company in February 2019. He is also a director of each
subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Wu is one of the directors and
responsible officers of Tiger Securities Asset Management
Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”) (as the investment manager
of the Company since 1 March 2016). Mr. Wu is currently licensed
under the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) to carry
out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (assets management) regulated activities accredited
to Tiger Securities. He has obtained the Honor Diploma of
Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July
1999. He has over 12 years of management experience in fund
accounting and asset management. He was the chief operating
officer of Tiger Securities from 2007 to 2012 responsible for the
overall operation of fund management. Since 2013, he has been
the director of the same company responsible for the general
management of regulated activities.

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan, aged 40, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company, and the chairman
and a member of investment committee of the Company on 25
February 2019. She was appointed as chief executive officer
of the Company on 3 June 2019. She is one of the responsible
officers of Bradbury Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(“BAM”). Ms. Chan is currently a licensed person to carry out type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFQ”). Ms. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of Wales, Newport, United Kingdom.
She has previous work experiences in Hong Kong, Canada
and Europe. She is experienced in dealing in securities, fund
management, corporate management, corporate finance and
managing investment companies listed under Chapter 21 of the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. Before joining BAM as a
responsible officer in 2016, Ms. Chan acted as a type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and type 9 (asset Management) responsible officer,
executive director and chief operating officer of Iridium Capital
Limited, a SFC licensed corporation since 2015. From 2011 to
2015, Ms. Chan worked for CU Investment Management Limited,
which was the investment manager of National Investments
Fund Limited (stock code: 1227), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Chan was an independent non-executive director
of Dadi International Group Limited (formerly known as Zhi Cheng
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8130), a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, during the period from July 2015 to
November 2017.
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Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, aged 53, is a non-executive
Director and member of investment committee of the Company
since 17 November 2014. Mr. Jacobsen is the chief executive
officer of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate finance
matters. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Jacobsen has more
than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and business
development. He was an executive director of Auto Italia Holdings
Limited (stock code: 720) for the period from 1 January 2012 to
17 October 2015. He was a non-executive director of Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 231) for the
period from 12 August 2015 to 30 September 2016. He was also
an independent non-executive director of King Stone Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 663), Qingdao Holdings International
Limited (stock code: 499), Hongda Financial Holding Limited
(stock code: 1822), China Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock
code: 2312) and Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (stock code:
723) for the period from 26 September 2008 to 30th September
2011, from 20 June 2008 to 27 September 2014, from 7 January
2013 to 29 August 2014, from 1 February 2013 to 30 April 2015
and from 4 January 2013 to 29 December 2017 respectively. Mr.
Jacobsen is currently an independent non-executive director of
abc Multiactive Limited (stock code: 8131); an independent non-
executive director of KK Culture Holdings Limited (stock code:
550) and an independent non-executive director of Solis Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2227).

Mr. Chen Albert, aged 32, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 August 2018. He is currently a
member of remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Computer Science of
University of Michigan in the United States of America. Mr. Chen
is currently the head of blockchain department of a technology
company in crypto-currency industry. He is also founder and chief
consultant of a consultancy company, which provides advisory
services on start-ups on physical product design, engineering
and production. Mr. Chen has over 7 years’ experience in his
entrepreneurship. Mr. Chen is a son of Mr. Chen Chien Yeh, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
March 2018, and re-designated as a non-executive director on 14
December 2018. He is currently a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wong
holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Social Science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He has over 28 years of financial
planning & modeling, investment analysis & execution and project
& liquidity management experience in banking and commercial
industry. Mr. Wong had held senior management positions in
various subsidiaries of certain companies listed in Hong Kong.
He is now also a director of a private securities company in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is currently a director of a subsidiary of the
Company namely Studio V Limited.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 21 August 2018. She
is currently the chairman and a member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan was graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s degree in professional accounting and has over
25 years of experience in pension and provident fund industry.
Ms. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Chan was the company secretary of Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8159) from 4 December
2012 to 10 January 2019 and she is currently an independent
non-executive director of Orient Securities International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8001), both companies are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Yin Ting, aged 38, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 14
December 2018. She is currently a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Leung is a barrister in Hong Kong and was called to the Bar of
Hong Kong in 2013. She is currently an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
achieved the specialist qualification in insolvency of HKICPA
in 2016. Ms. Leung obtained a Bachelor degree of Laws
from University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2004, and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 2006. Before pursuing her career in Law, she has more than
four years’ audit experience in the Big Four accounting firms in
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Jiang Qian, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 14 December 2018.
He is currently the chairman and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. From September 2007 to November
2009, Mr. Jiang worked at an attorney at Davis Polk & Wardwell
LLP, where he was involved in the public offering and bond
issuance. From January 2010 to November 2011, he worked as
a counsel at King & Wood Law Firm (& #1280 £ 7% FT), where
his practice focuses on capital market and public offerings.
From January 2012 to January 2015, he served as a managing
director at Bank of New York Mellon, where he was responsible
for the management of its legal affairs. From February 2015 to
December 2015, Mr. Jiang served as a managing director at
China Commodity Merchant Trading Group Limited, a subsidiary
of Elion Resources Group (%] & R & &), a company mainly
engaged in ecological restoration and clean energy, where he was
responsible for its investment and financing in Hong Kong. From
December 2015 to June 2018, he served as co-head of the legal
department at China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings
Company Limited (FEIKIMEE (BIE) FRAER A F]) (formerly
known as Great Wall Pan Asia International Investment Company
Limited (K 3t 3R T Bl B 4% & & R 24 7)), a company mainly
engaged in property investment and financial business, where he
was responsible for the management of its legal affairs in Hong
Kong. Since November 2018, he has been serving as a partner
at Addleshaw Goddard (Hong Kong) LLP, where his practice
focuses on debt capital markets and special situation transactions
such as restructuring. Mr. Jiang obtained his bachelor’s degree in
economic law from East China University of Political Science and
Law (ZE & BUE A E) in the PRC in July 1999, and his master of
laws degree from Northwestern University in the United States in
June 2007. Mr. Jiang obtained the legal professional qualification
certificate in the PRC in February 2000 and was admitted and
licensed to practise as an attorney and counselor in the state of
New York of the United States in July 2008. Mr. Jiang is currently
an independent non-executive director of China Gingko Education
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1851).
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As at 31 December 2019, none of the directors or the chief
executive of the Company had, nor were they taken to or deemed
to have under Part XV of the SFO, any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Listing
Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors or chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporates.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Company had been notified
of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
position, being 5% or more of the Company’s shares and
underlying shares which are required to be recorded in the
register of interests in shares and short positions maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interests
BRESE BB B HEEME
Chen Chien Yeh Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
PR % ERBEAAN/ BEnlksx
Twu Kai Ting Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
R = ERBEAN/ BEnkn

Solution Smart Holdings Limited Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
ERnBEAN/ BEnlksn

SW Venture Asia Limited Interest in a controlled corporation/
Corporate interest
ZEGEEER LR ER

Yeung Shing Wai Interest in a controlled corporation/
Corporate interest
B (& ZEGEERER LR ER

(L) — Long Position
(S) — Short Position

Notes:

1. Solution Smart Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by
SW Venture Asia Limited. SW Venture Asia Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Shing Wai. Accordingly, Mr.
Yeung Shing Wai and SW Venture Asia Limited are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Solution Smart Holdings Limited
under the SFO.

2. Following the completion of the Rights Issue in October 2019, the
Company had not received any notifications of disclosure of interests
from those shareholders reporting the change in number of shares.
Based on the issued shares as at 31 December 2019, the percentage
level of those shareholders had been reduced to below 5%.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of significant management contracts in relation to the
Company’s business are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

The Group is an investment holding company. In the opinion
of the directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the
Group’s customers and suppliers.

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions are constituted exempted
transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which
are carried out and disclosed in compliance with the relevant
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters including a review of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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On 6 January 2017, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned as
auditor of the Company and World Link CPA Limited (“World Link”)
was appointed by the Directors to fill such casual vacancy.

World Link, who acted as auditor of the Company for the
financial years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, resigned on 23 December
2019 and McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillan
Woods”) was appointed as auditor of the Company on 23
December 2019.

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by McMillan Woods. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint McMillan Woods as the
auditor of the Company.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

By order of the Board
Cocoon Holdings Limited
Wu Ming Gai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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Maintaining high standards of corporate governance in

everything we do.

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the
smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to high standards of corporate governance with a view

to being transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as its own code on corporate

governance practices.

The Company had met the relevant code provisions set
out in the Code during the year, except the deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides that the roles and
responsibilities of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separated. Since 3 June 2019, the Company has rectified the
deviation mentioned by the appointment of Ms. Chan Carman
Wing Yan as the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEQ”).
Following the appointment of CEO, the Company complied with
the requirements under code provision A.2.1 of the Code since 3
June 2019.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
Code.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
currently comprises two executive Directors. Mr. Wu Ming Gai
acts as Chairman of the Board and Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
is the CEO. The Company has three non-executive Directors,
Mr. Chen Albert, Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and
Mr. Jiang Qian, representing more than one-third of the Board.
Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting both have appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise.

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The biographical details of each
Director are disclosed on pages 41 to 44 of this annual report.

Each independent non-executive Director has pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he/she is
independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall hold office
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company at least once every three years and eligible for re-
election.

The term of office of each of non-executive Directors

(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation.
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The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the
management of the Company, formulation and approval of the
Group’s development and business strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets, financial results and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Bye-Laws.

The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management of the
Company’s operations. She conducts regular meetings with
the management of the subsidiaries of the Company, at which
operational issues and financial performance are evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting
systems and internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a
key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management.

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Matters specifically decided by the Board and those reserved
for the management, such as daily management, administration
and operation of the Company, etc. with respective level of
authorities with regard to key corporate strategy, policy and
contractual commitments, are reviewed by the Board. The
management shall report back to the Board.

The Bye-Laws contain description of responsibilities and
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds regular
meeting and listens to the operating reports of the Company and
makes policies. Significant operating policies of the Company
have to be discussed and passed by the Board. Board meetings
include regular meetings as defined in the Code and other
meetings when necessary. The Board of Directors meets formally
at least four times a year.

Besides regular and other meetings, the Board obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies
of the management, financial conditions and operating results of
the Company and provisions of significant agreements.
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During 2019, the Board held four regular Board meetings at
approximately quarterly interval and other Board meetings which
were convened when deemed necessary. Due notice and Board
papers of regular Board meetings were given to all Directors prior
to the meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws and the Code.
Details of individual attendance of Directors at regular Board
meetings in 2019 are set out below:

Executive Directors

HiTE=E

Mr. Wu Ming Gai (appointed as the Chairman on 18 February 2019)

HEETE(R=ZZE—NWF_AT+N\BEZERERE)

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan (appointed on 25 February 2019)

BRixMzt(R=ZTE-—NWF_AZTHBEZE)

Mr. Chau Wai Hing (resigned as executive Director and Chairman on
18 February 2019)

BEREE(RZZE-—NEF-_ATN\ABREIATESEREF)

Non-executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen
HERAELE

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
Ea e

Mr. Chen Albert

R 7 18 5% A4

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

PR & L+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

RIEE R L

Mr. Jiang Qian

BHREE
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The role of the Chairman (assumed by an executive Director,
Mr. Wu Ming Gai on 18 February 2019 and Mr. Chau Wai Hing
resigned on 18 February 2019) is separated from that of the CEO
(assumed by an executive director, Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
on 3 June 2019). Such division of responsibilities allows a balance
of power between the Board and the management of the Group,
and ensures their independence and accountability.

Since 3 June 2019, the CEO, assisted by other executive
Director, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
business of the Group, attends to formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to
the Board for all operations of the Group. Prior to 3 June 2019,
the role of CEO was performed by the executive Directors of the
Company.

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees
the Board so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has
overall responsibility for providing leadership, vision and direction
in the development of the business of the Company. During the
year, the Chairman had held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company without the presence of
the other executive Directors and non-executive Directors of the
Company.

Currently, the CEO, assists by other executive Director(s),
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of
the Group, attends to formulation and successful implementation
of policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all
operations of the Group. Working with the management team of
subsidiaries of the Company, they ensure smooth operations and
development of the Group. They maintain continuing dialogue
with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed
of all major business developments and issues. They are also
responsible for building and maintaining an effective management
team to support them.

The Board considers that there are adequate balance of
power and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this
situation periodically and will ensure that present structure would
not impair the balance of power of the Company.
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duties.

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

Attending regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance.

Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries of the
Company.

Approval of annual budgets for each operating company
covering strategy, financial and business performance,
key risks and opportunities.

Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability
of internal and external reporting.

Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest
of management, Board members and shareholders,
including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related
party transaction.

Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall
integrity of the Company, including financial statements,
relationships with other stakeholders, and compliance
with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company’s Directors to meet their obligations,
appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly
defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

A number of Board Committees, including Audit Committee,
Investment Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, have been established by the Board of Directors
to strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise. These
committees have been formed with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with the committees’ authority and
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The Board has established an Investment Committee, as
at the date of this report, the Investment Committee comprising
one executive Director, namely Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
(Chairman) and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. William
Keith Jacobsen.

The terms of reference of the Investment Committee have
been approved and adopted by the Board.

The Investment Committee considers, evaluates, reviews
and recommends to the Board the proposed major investments,
acquisitions and disposals, conducts post-investment evaluation
with investment manager of the investment projects, reviews
and considers the overall strategic direction and business
developments of the Company.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, as at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprising,
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Albert and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Qian
(Chairman), Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, to determine remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management (under
code provision B.1.2(c)(i) was adopted) including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, and to recommend
to the Board of Directors on remuneration of independent non-
executive Directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done in 2019:

— reviewed the remuneration policy for 2019/2020;

— determined the remuneration of executive Directors and
senior management; and

— reviewed and made recommendation of the fee of the
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors).

EFZRCRUREZBS NARSHAY  KE
ZEEH B TEEREMAE(ERE) AR —%
FATEFERERELEMAK -

REZEGNREGECESESSHAERK

BREZBEEZRE A RIKANEZTSGHER
AIERE WBRLERER ARELEHRER
BETRERIE ARIREEARAANEER
BT A R R -

EZEgCRUFMEZES  RABRSAH - 3
ZEEmM B FNTEETRBBEEUAR=Z2BY
FRATEERRAEE(ER) RERLLIRRERE
K o

FMzEenRaERECS 2R TAETRE
H%ZBAZ!KA A8k B X P AR -

FHEZEENEEIARIREBEARREHES
SREEEFHOBE  REEMNATEERS
REEEMFMAS (BT RIEXB.1.2(c)(i) (B
BV  BRARSENRBENSTK UERAEFE
EEBUFRITESNEHM -

AT EFMERERN T - NETFENHRE :

— BN CE_TFEENHFHBE

— EERTEEREREEENTH K

— BREFATEF(BERBIUFNTESFT)NG
ERELEE -

Annual Report 20195



The remuneration of the members of the senior management
(including all executive Directors of the Company) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FHMERCGER)

0 to 1,000,000
0% 1,000,000

Further particulars regarding all Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 138 to 141.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during 2019.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

Names

%"

Mr. Jiang Qian (Chairman)

BHREE(ERE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi

PR L+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

R Ig L+

Mr. Chen Albert (appointed on 3 June 2019)
REEEE(RZZE-—NEA=ZAEZME)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (resigned on 3 June 2019)
BHRCEAE(R-_ZTE-NAFNA=ZHEET)
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As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit Committee
is composed of one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.
It reports directly to the Board of Directors and reviews matters
within the scope of audit, such as financial statements and internal
controls, to protect the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2019:

— review of the consolidated and condensed financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 respectively;

— review of effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

— review of internal audit function;

— review of continuing connected transactions and annual
caps;

— review of implementation of policy for employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

— review of independent auditor’s report and management
letter (if any); and

— consideration and approval of 2019 audit fees and
audit work, review of engagement letter and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and resignation of auditor.

As at 31 December 2019, the arrangement for employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters was in place.
No reporting has been received by Audit Committee during the
year.

RARERH ARABRBERZEEKEBRE %
FRTEFFEPCELEURREBBIFNATEER
FEZL (TR RRKERLEAX HEERESF
FER  URAEEHEEAANEE @ fIOTBRE
RABEERE  ARERARBBRRAOEE -

ERZBCEARRINEZBENERRITES
N wmBEZREFREAEE IR ABEELR
BHHREAN HERXEEHEHMLIERZES
MERIBE YhEFSEHRALESN -#AEH
B 8N AN D B A8 Uk KB AR A A e

ATIER-_B-NFNITERS

— SAERHEE_T - N\F+_A=+—HLt
FENAERBE-_ZT—NAFNAZTHLAE
AW E Lk EHEMEHRE

— RIBRREERABEZRGRETER

— WA AREZIEE

— BRFBEHEXZRFELR:

— BMEUARBEREARMGER REEZER
Hip A gEF AN TN EETRAIROREN
BERNETER

— BHBURBMBSNEEZRE(WE):
&

— EERMME_T-NAFREEBERRERT
1 BHZEBH ARBEEEOHNERE &
MEEMBEIREESRHEESE -

RZB-AF+_A=+—-HETBBEREAR
BREF AV ISESR  ABBEIE S E M 77 @ A 8
MAEETRRELBEINZE -RAFER  BEXE
et ERIERMBEREER -

Annual Report 20195



The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

Names

nE

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)
REEL LT (FE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
mHCELE

Ms. Leung Yin Ting
REp L

The Board has established a nomination committee on 1
April 2012 which currently comprises one non-executive Director,
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive
Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Mr. Jiang Qian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider the structure, size and composition of the Board
regularly and make recommendation on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Its duties include making recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination
Committee done in 2019:

— made recommendation to the Board on matters relating
to, inter alia, nomination of candidates to the Board and
re-election of retiring Directors;

— reviewed the board diversity policy;

— reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

— conducted an annual review of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

— reviewed the Board composition and structure.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

During the year, Mr. Chau Wai Hing resigned as an executive
Director on 18 February 2019 and Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
was appointed as an executive Director on 25 February 2019.

The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, Mr. Wong Chung
Yan Sammy, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Jiang Qian to retire by
rotation and, being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming 2020 annual
general meeting.

In considering the nomination of appointment and/or
re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee assessed
the relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skill, professional qualifications, independent mind and ability
to commit time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.
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The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from
the Director(s) for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by the Director(s). The factors which would
be used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as the Director, diversity
of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year. Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in
the table below:

Names

e

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)
REEL L (FE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
mHRCEE

Mr. Jiang Qian

BTt

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in
August 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the
Board of the Company.
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The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors
and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender
or religious belief. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part,
dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review the board diversity policy and
setting of any measurable objectives from time to time.

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors received from the Company updates on changes and
development to the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Company operates. Directors participated in continuous
professional development such as attending seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company had received record of the trainings from each Director
relating to development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills.

EREINHERE RNAFER EFER
RARHREBARARERBEMEILEREE
RENEPLERNENESN - EF2HEFEF
FRE  W2MNHNEIABREILIRITHNHER
O EBREAGRIABUNHESSFELREN
R - ARBERKINEEZAHEREEFH
B R 2 E I RE R

Attending expert briefings/
seminars/conferences
relevant to the business or

Directors Reading regulatory updates Directors’ duties

HEABEXKR
EEREZ
EXfENg

= MEEEEHRER mHE &8

Executive Directors

HiITE=SE

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan (appointed on 25 February 2019) v v

RAxMEX LT (R ZZE-NF_A-_THBREERE)

Mr. Wu Ming Gai v v

1A B4 1 S A&

Mr. Chau Wai Hing (resigned on 18 February 2019) N/A N/A

BAEREE(RZZE-—NAEFEF-A T+ N\BEEI) ~EA & A

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy v v

|mHRCEE

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen v 4

EEHELSE

Mr. Chen Albert v v

BR M 18 5 A4

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi v v

PR &R L+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting v v

RIEE L

Mr. Jiang Qian 4 v

BT
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the Code. The major roles
and functions of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
are:

— to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices
on corporate governance; and

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and the Company’s compliance with the Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance
matters for 2019:

— review of the policy and practices adopted by the
Company and training for Directors, etc.

— review of usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group

— review of compliance with the Code and disclosure of
Corporate Governance Report

— review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company

The company secretary is appointed a representative from an
external secretarial services provider as the company secretary
of the Company. The primary contact person of the Company
with the company secretary is Mr. Wu Ming Gai, the executive
Director. The role of the company secretary is to ensure effective
information flows and communication among Directors, as well
as between shareholders and management of the Company. The
company secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary. During the Year, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also established written guidelines
regarding securities transactions on no less exacting terms of the
Model Code for specific individual who may have access to inside
information in relation to the securities of the Company.

On 6 January 2017, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned
as auditor of the Company and World Link CPA Limited (“World
Link”) was appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy
so arising. On 23 December 2019, World Link resigned as auditor
of the Company and McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
("McMillan Woods") was appointed by the Directors to fill the
casual vacancy so arising.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The Audit Committee reviewed engagement letter and report
from the external auditor of the Company, McMillan Woods,
confirmed its independence. The Audit Committee also approves
their appointment, discusses the scope of their audit, approved
the audit fees, and the scope and appropriate fees for any non-
audit services requested to be provided by external auditors.

McMillan Woods provided annual audit services in respect of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended
31 December 2019. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the fees to World Link, former auditor of the
Company, in respect of non-audit services were HK$65,000.

Services rendered: HK$
Non-audit services

— Review of interim financial information 60,000
— Taxation services 5,000
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During the year, remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditors, McMillan Woods and other McMillan Woods network
firms, is as follows:

Services rendered: HK$
Audit services 320,000
Non-audit services
— Review of interim financial information —
— Risk assessment and internal control
review 100,000
— Services in relation to the environmental,
social and governance reporting 50,000
— Taxation services 5,000

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times. The Company has
adopted a series of risk management and internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

Details of the Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems” of the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 23 to 24 of this annual report.

The Group has not established an internal audit, but has
engaged an external professional consultant to perform the
work of internal audit function and during the year, the external
professional consultant had reviewed and assessed the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and reported to
the Audit Committee. The review covered several parts of the
systems including risk management, and operational, financial
and compliance controls.

The Board, and through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2019 covering all material financial, operational and compliance
functions, is of the view that the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are
considered as effective and adequate. Such review also included
consideration of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit (if any) and financial
reporting functions.
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The Company is committed to a consistent practice of
timely, accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With these guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide
our shareholders with detailed information about the Company
so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual report,
interim report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

At the annual general meeting held on 28 June 2019 (“2019
AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Chairman of the Board and the Chairman and
members of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and
Remuneration Committee and representatives of World Link
attended the 2019 AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Procedure for conducting a poll were explained by the Chairman
at the 2019 AGM.

At an extraordinary general meeting held on 11 March 2019
(the “2019 EGM”), resolutions were proposed by the chairman
in respect of Change of Domicile, Capital Reorganisation and
adoption of the memorandum of continuance and the new Bye-
Laws and a special general meeting held on 12 September
2019 (the “2019 SGM”) in respect of the Rights Issue. Certain
Directors attended the meetings and answered the question of the
Shareholders.
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Executive Directors
HITES
Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
(appointed on 25 February 2019)
RkMEX T (R=ZF-—NF_AZF+AHEZE)
Mr. Wu Ming Gai (Chairman)
SR E S E (F/E)
Mr. Chau Wai Hing
(resigned on 18 February 2019)
BAEREE(R=ZF—-NF=ZA+/THEF)

Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
BEHRLCEE

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen
HERAELE

Mr. Chen Albert

IR 7 18 5% A

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

BR & L+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

R IE L+

Mr. Jiang Qian

iy ke

2019 EGM
—E-hF
BAKRRAE

N/A

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will

be held on 22 June 2020 which will be conducted by way of poll.

2019 SGM
—E-hF
BREHAE

N/A
8 R

ARAAHRERRBFREZEN-F
“HZRST ABURE

R R o

2019 AGM
—g2-hE
REBAEAE

N/A

>
&
i
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special
general meeting (“SGM”). Set out below are procedures by which
shareholders may (a) convene a SGM; (b) put forward enquires to
the Board; and (c) put forward proposals at general meetings. The
procedures are subject to the Bye-Laws and applicable legislation
and regulation.

Shareholder(s) of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company and Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special general
meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the attention
of the Board.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAIT
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote
at general meetings of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders may, at their expense, provide a written
request to the attention of the company secretary of the
Company signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to
propose a person for election as Director is available on
the Company’s website.

Due to Change of Domicile, the Company has adopted new
memorandum of continuance and new Bye-Laws with effective
from 1 April 2019 (Bermuda Time), the date of continuance of the
Company under the laws of Bermuda.

The new memorandum of continuance and new Bye-Laws
of the Company is available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statement of
the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 70 to 77.

HENERAIEA2ABRERAG EEEZAR
NABEBREARNLVDR -_+H 2 —HREREXHT
D100 KRR - ATIRIE B HE1981F A A
FRARRZARMERREREZERE
KoHEBERARBEEETRIE-

ARABRRBELHASEEZTNRFHRA
NG R

HREMBHEE  ARFEHRMBE T —NF
MA-B(BREZHRH) (AREBEAREEZZARAF
BeR)BEMNHEEREEFAL -

RN ) B T 17 AR K AR KR AR B B R AR X R A A
Bt X P AS U

EEARMMERUGEYBHRRNELT - B
RBMRLMERGEMERRAREEFELENE
B HRBIOETTENBILRBMBREA -
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cocoon Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 175, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of unlisted financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and unlisted financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”)

2. Impairment and recoverability of the Group’s loan notes

Key Audit Matter
HEETBHE

Valuation of unlisted financial assets at FVTPL and unlisted
financial assets at FVTOCI

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgement and estimates in note 5, relevant disclosures in notes
7, 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had unlisted financial assets at FVTPL and unlisted
financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately HK$19,520,000
and HK$29,400,000 respectively were measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2019. The fair values were assessed by the
management based on valuations performed by an independent
company of professional valuer (“Valuer”) engaged by the
Group.
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H ' BEEEAIAEREBZEIR
WELTEREERRARNEREM2EKRHSIKRNE LT EH
& E D B4 519,520,000 T % 29,400,000 7T - HiE A EE
E-AABENHEREER BESEZENRBUHEEMGER
Al ([MEER D) PR e E#ETT R -

The valuations of the unlisted financial assets at FVTPL
and unlisted financial assets at FVTOCI involved significant
judgement and estimates, including the determination of
valuation methodology and the selection of different inputs to the
valuation models.

BRADERBERRIENFLTEREENEAAEREMBEE
WEHFBRNIFE LT EREENLEY R ERALR KRG - BIEE

EEETENEEGAERIENTREAE -

MREFFERRERMOTLAN  RAYA
BMEANBRENBHBRAEENEE BLFE

RERMEABERGEVBERRREAZ REET
BRIE G MEMAIeHELEREHEBER - AR
BAEMBRESFFTEA/RS

1. BRAAERBEEIK(TRAZERERR
SR D ZFEMEMEBEERRAREREM
E2EKEIE(MEAREREBE2E KRS
FRDZFETEREENGE

2. AREERERERARERA LR IE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNBES OO EERAEETSE

BARERBZERINENH LHTEBEERKEAABRE
2 ERZIRH LTEHEENEE

B LB AR LB REFBE - W25 B8 HI B 70
M3t R RS BB B BEM T 28R 24P R E

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

HZMERUEEENREFBERE

Evaluating the expertise and independence of the
Valuer;

A EMNER KRB

Checking the accuracy of the historical data used in
the valuation model;

RS HEELPERNE L BB ERE

Challenging the appropriateness of the key
assumptions applied in the valuation model, with
reference to historical performance of each investee
and our understanding of their respective businesses
and industries;

KB HERLTMERERBRNEEN  Eh22E
BEEWBRETNRLREARKMEES B EBRT
FOEM
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

We identified the valuation of unlisted financial assets at FVTPL
and unlisted financial assets at FVTOCI as a key audit matter as
they accounted for approximately 26% of total Group’s assets
(by value) as at 31 December 2019 and were significant to
the Group’s capital and financial performance due to a higher
degree of complexity, and the significance of management’s
judgements and unobservable inputs involves in the valuations.
The valuations of these unlisted financial instruments involve
the application of unobservable inputs such as price to book
ratios, discount rates, credit spread and volatility. With different
valuation techniques, inputs and assumptions applied, the
valuation results can vary significantly.
BHABRARERERRIENIFLTEREEREARLER
PHAMKRIENIF LT EREENGEEZR N RERESS
B RRAENR - ZE—AF+_A=+—HBHHE ZS£EBHEEE
H26% (IZEE) THEERSHEREMY EXENELRR
MBRERR/REE URKMBEPREEENSERAB R TAIER
WABE ZEFLITeRITANGESRERNAIHRE AE -
WHER CFRE CEAMNENEDE - KATENMEERDS -
BWABERBRIXAIEHAEEARELBREEZR -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERREENSE

— We engaged a valuation specialist to assist us to
review the appropriateness of the valuation approach
and methodology, the accuracy of the calculations
in the valuation model and the market data used
on a sample basis, and the reasonableness of the
components comprising the discount rate; and

— BMZEETHEZRGHRMERGEEERTENEG
B RERE R E RS EE (AT ) B
Y ARTHREEXLONESEMNE : &

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosure in
the consolidated financial statements.
— BEGAMBREARENGHML -



Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

Impairment and recoverability of the Group’s loan notes

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgement and estimates in note 5 and its relevant disclosures in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment and recoverability of loan notes as
a key audit matter due to the significant degree of management’s
judgement in assessing their expected credit losses (“ECL”).
BB ERZENRERTKREMHZENSEREFEER - AR
EREREERAGERR(RACGEERDBEREKRNY
B o

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had held three trenches of
loan notes designated at amortised costs with gross carrying
value of approximately HK$86,676,000 (“Loan Notes”) and
provision for impairment of HK$5,619,000. Provision is made for
lifetime ECL on Loan Notes.

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—R0  BESERBET=ZEHETARE
HK ARG ENERRE @ 2KREEL 586,676,000 T ([ERR
&1 REREA5,619,000/8 T o BE T EREIRN 2 478
BEEBEEEL -

In assessing the ECL as well as recoverability of the Loan Notes,
management applied judgement in assessing the ECL of each
issuer of Loan Notes individually based on respective credit risk
characteristics and the likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of these issuers, their geographical locations and
industries, and applying ECL rates to respective gross carrying
amounts of Loan Notes. The ECL rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced and were adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of Loan Notes’ issuers to redeem
their Loan Notes upon maturity.
RABBHEEBRAMREREEN T REEE - B2 EERH
o EREREBRSETASENEERRS R DRIES
B UEBZEBRTANME  WIEMGERAETENGEE
HEEFRE YHEREESANAEmERREHNEEEE
R -FHHEEERXDNERNBECEFREE  UKHERRE
RIRATELEER  MFEERERZTARIGAREREERE
BZRENNEZELERE -

We have identified impairment and recoverability of the Loan
Notes as a key audit matter due to considerable amount
of judgment and estimation being required in conducting
recoverability and ECL assessment as mentioned in the
foregoing paragraph.

BHMPSERRENORERATREMEZ ABREFEFE  REAR
M E—BRAR - ETAREERERAEEEENGEERE
H T R fh 5 e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ET M EERREENSE

BEEEE 7 F 58956 E R 7Y E

HABHN 4R m E BT R - BT 54 49 5 52 ) B 71
1851 AR B A& B KM L2270 49 16 B 5 57 -

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

BMEREEENEFEE -

— evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

— AEEEEES  WREBKGFRBEEBENEE
HAEE S RE B LEER L

— assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models by examining the model inputs used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions used in
each of the economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances; and

— BB EEELKA 2 PR e R &8 A BUR R
i BEXEEEHCEFRERENAEN  BEAIFAB
EROBEBENERE HEBESEXEDRE AT
BN R AT 1B R (B AR AT 2 E = AR &K
ISR TP AR R AR E)EE M E L AR
HECEENRBETERERABEEENRRE &

— inspected settlements after the financial year end
relating to the Loan Notes as at 31 December 2019.

— RUBFELEREBRE2019F12A31MBNERZEE
BIEM o
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 28
March 2019.

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all the information included in the
Company’s annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P06633

3/F., Winbase Centre,
208 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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For the year ended 31 December
HE+T-A=1T—BHILFE

Gross proceeds from disposals of

trading securities

Revenue
Other revenue
Other gains and (losses)

Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:

Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
— Fair value gain on financial

assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

(“FVTOCI”)

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year attributable

to owners of the Company

Loss per share
Basic

Diluted
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Note
o &

10
11

12

13
14

16

2019

o
HK$’000
FHT

53,057

8,988

(34,337)

(25,349)

(6,283)
(3,729)

(35,361)

(35,361)

400

(34,961)

(HK$0.2038 7T)

(HK$0.2035 7T)

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
T T

123,228

10,812
410
(75,961)

(64,739)

(9,552)
(4,167)

(78,458)

(78,458)

8,676

(69,782)

(Restated)
(&)

(HK$0.76% 1)

(HK$0.76% 1)



At 31 December

i sy = o e =l 3|
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
JioN=3 FHET FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WENMKRE 18 10 19
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19(a) 475 >
Goodwill RS 20 — —
Other receivables, deposits and EmEls ek
prepayments REENE e 21 3,000 —
Loan notes EREE 22 75,913 45,610
79,398 45,629
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hibpr s - &€ KB RIE
prepayments ) 21 20,874 15,764
Loan notes BERER 22 5,144 10,417
Financial assets at fair value through ERREREZRS R
profit or loss (“FVTPL”") (MR RARERBEEERYIER])
LB E 23 26,806 85,069
Financial assets at FVTOCI EARBEREME2ERZET R
JERMEBE 24 29,400 35,176
Due from securities brokers JE UL 3B A AR 42 TR IR 25 12 12
Bank balances IR1T4E 84 28,187 4,779
110,423 151,217
Current liabilities REBAE
Due to securities brokers JE 1 58 5 A8 42 TR IR 26 2,011 5,190
Other payables and accruals HMmENRERETER 27 1,347 3,801
Lease liabilities HEAE 19(b) 282 —
Shareholder’s loan f& BB 3 28 — 31,710
Promissory notes A E 29 337 834
3,977 41,535
Net current assets REBEEFE 106,446 109,682
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHEE 185,844 155,311
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 19(b) 208 —
Promissory notes AR 29 19,920 19,920
20,128 19,920
Net assets EEFE 165,716 135,391
Capital and reserves EXR®EE
Share capital H§$ 31 35,973 119,909
Reserves & 33 129,743 15,482
Total equity R 165,716 135,391
Net asset value per share BEREEFE 34 HK$0.46% 7T HK$1.1378 7T

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

March 2020.
Wu Ming Gai Chan Carman Wing Yan
A 8% R Bk iR
Director Director
EFE EF

HEFER _ZT_TF-_A_t+HHLERTETHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

At 1 January 2018

Loss and total comprehensive
expenses
for the year

Issue of shares on placement
(note 31)

Redemption of convertible bonds
(note 28)

Changes in equity for the year

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16

At 1 January 2019 (restated)

Loss and total comprehensive
expenses for the year

Capital rearganisation (note 31)

Rights Issue (note 31)

Transfer of reserve

Changes in equity for the year

At 31 December 2019

RZE-N\5-A-H

AEEBRREERX A%

REREARDWZ31)

BEm @ ES1728)

KEERZEY
RZE-N\F+-A=t+-A

RZE-\E+ZA=1-A
RBERG B REER 165
2@

VE

RZE-hn%-f-H
(mEi)
FEFERZARYLE

RARER HH31)
wR(Hit31)
BUGE
REERLEEY

RZE-n%+-A=t+-A

Share
capital

k%

HK§'000
TEL

85,929

33,980

33,980

119,909

119,909

119,909

(107,918)
23982

(83,936)

35,973

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

Share  Contributed
premium surplus
(Note 33(b)(i)) (Note 33(b)(iv))

kB e EHEH
(WE330)) (H#338)v)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T
203,918 =
(3,541) =
(3,541) =
200377 =
200377 =
200377 =
(200,377) 107,918
41,313 =
(159,064) 107,918
41,313 107,918

Financial

Convertible assets at
honds equity FVTOCI
reserve reserve
(Note 33(b)(ii))  (Note 33(b)(ii))
BARE

REMZE

W51 2

TERES SREE
BaffE il 3
(WE33e)i) (H#33)i)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL

17 —

— 8,676

(1) -

(17) 8,676

— 8,676

- 8,676

— 8,676

— 400

— 1,824

— 2,224

— 10,900

Accumulated
losses

2T ER

HK§'000
TEL

(115,284)

(78,458)

(78,287)

(193,571)

(193,571)

)

(193,580)

(35,361)
200377

(1,824)

163,192

(30,368)

Total
reserve

L f

HK§'000
TEL

88,805

(69,782)

(3,541)

(13,323)

15,482

15,482

15,473

(34,961)
107,918
#A13

114,270

129,743

Total

L]

HK§'000
THL

174,734

(69,782)

30,439

(39,343)

135,391

135,391

9)

135,382

(34,961)

65,295

30,334

165,716



Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Finance costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value losses on trading securities

Fair value losses on convertible bonds
designated at financial assets at
FVTPL

Fair value losses on private equity fund
designated at financial assets at
FVTPL

Gain on disposals of convertible bonds
designated at financial assets at
FVTPL

Loss on disposals of loan notes

Loss on disposal of unlisted equity
investments designated at financial
assets at FVTOCI

Impairment losses on loan notes

Impairment losses on deposits and
other receivables

Other payables written back

Operating loss before working capital
changes

Decrease in trading securities

Decrease in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Decrease in amounts due from
securities brokers

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
securities brokers

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accruals

Cash used in operations
Interest (paid)/received

Net cash used in operating activities

Note
Mt &t
RETH2HERE
BB Al B 18
I
FE WA
B 765 B 7R

ME BELEXETE

EREEERE
RH5EHZ R RERE
BERBRRAALERBER
FIfR 2z M EEMN A BHRES
WA EEE
BER/BRRINERBRERKIER
ZEREENLEESANE
BB
HEREREARNENERK
SRz M EEMN A EBHRES
Hy Ui 28

HEERREER 35(a)(i)
HEREREBEARENEM
2EREIRZEREEN
FETRBERERR
EREBRERRE

12 2R (E B 1B & H b 8 WK

1 S L A 7 A5 R

AT EBESEHAZ
R EE
RXPBREFRD

Hit UK - BE R
A R ER

& W 78 75 R 4T R IRR

35(a)(ii)

B 5 E R R
CEOVE D!
e BEVY 8 T
GR) /8

REMAZEE
(ZA4) /e B FIE

RETHFAZRE TR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

2019
—E-n%E
HK$’000
FET

(35,361)

(8,988)

3,729

347
9,025

2,146

2,064

1,676
2,598

538

(22,217)
21,887

352

(3,179)

(2,454)

(5,611)
(3,926)

(9,537)

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

TATT

(78,458)

(10,812)
4,167

14

10,817

14,073

5,459

(5,081)

4,992

351
(120)

(54,598)
28,696

1,830

449

3,376

2,423

(17,824)
2,808

(15,016)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of unlisted equity
investments designated at financial
assets at FVTOCI

Subscription of loan notes

Deposit paid for potential investment

Net cash from/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares under
rights issue, net of expenses
Principal portion of lease payments
(Decrease)/increase in shareholder’s
loan
Redemption of promissory notes
Proceeds from issue of shares on
placement, net of expenses
Redemption of convertible bonds

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Bank balances

REZFBZEESRE
SRR
BEME BELRERB

BEREERRANGE

PE A 2 W a5 51 R 2
TREEMNFLMERERE
RBEREE

XNEBEERERS

REZEHME (A2
REFE

METBNRESRE
REBEHEZETROMASRK -0
BRERERIE
HMEMNKOARE D
BERERCORD) /&

B8 O] & 2=

B BB /TR ID M FT S 3008
Nk EEER%

BE [B] 7] 83 4 {E 5
BMETH - RS TFEHE
HeERBRLESHE o EMTE
R—A—HBZRE&EEREEHE

R+tZA=+—-HZRER
REEH

RERRAETEHERD T

AT AR

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

2018

—E-NF

Note HK$°000
k2 FHE T

65,295
(341)

(31,710)
(300)

32,944

23,408
4,779

28,187

28,187

2017

—ET—+tF

HK$’000
TAETT

(8,000)
(5,500)
(10,000)

(23,502)

30,000
(8,530)

30,439
(12,500)

39,409

891
3,888

4,779

4,779



Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and continued
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Walkers
Corporate (Bermuda) Limited, Park Place, 55 Par-la-Ville
Road, Third Floor, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company is Room 14A, Fortune
House, 61 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.
The principal activities of the Company are investments in
securities listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with a potential for earnings growth and capital
appreciation.

The investment objective of the Company is to achieve an
enhanced earnings stream and capital appreciation from its
investments.

The Company has adopted the following investment policies:

(i) the Company may, at its sole discretion, invest in any
securities, listed or unlisted, including warrants, money
market instruments, bank deposits, currency investments,
commodities, options, convertible securities, futures
contracts and precious metals or any other forms
of investments in securities which would enable the
Company to achieve good income or capital appreciation.

(ii) the Company may, for hedging purposes only, buy, write
or sell warrants, covered warrants, options or traded
options on its underlying investments. The Company
may also buy or sell futures contracts on stock indices or
shares (if any) as a means to hedge against adverse price
movements of its investments.

(iii

~

in order to hedge against interest rate risks, the Company
may enter into forward interest rate agreements, interest
rates and US treasury bond futures contracts and
interest rate swaps. The Company may also, for hedging
purpose only, purchase and write (sell) put or call options
or options on futures on interest rates. The Company
will only engage in transactions in options and futures
which are traded on a recognized securities or futures
exchange.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

FERXSERAERAGA(A2ADRAREHS
MK AEREERARNENRBEREFEZE
@“ﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁéi%%ﬁ@“ﬂﬁﬁ
RET]) £ o HaE it ¥ F & 2 i ik AWalkers
Corporate (Bermuda) Limited, Park Place, 55
Par-La-Ville Road, Third Floor, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda - R AR Z X BZE XM AR ERIRT
%ﬁ¢m%%@ﬁfMA§°$“ﬂm1£¥%
EEHARERERAZTARGM EMcESFRA
ﬁ”ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ@ ENEELETIRE o

ARARREBBEREMEBNREERENERNE
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() ARAT2EMERENER ETRFEL
TES ERREE WETSIA R
TER EERE ERWE THRE
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HIE - BAAREMEEARALEDA
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
E_T-NFTZA=T+—HLEFE

(iv) cash pending investment, reinvestment or distribution will
be placed in bank deposits in any currency, obligations
of the United States or Hong Kong governments, their
respective agencies or instrumentalities, or securities and
other instruments denominated in any currency issued
by various governments or international development
agencies.

The Company may not:

(i) either on its own or in conjunction with any connected
person, take legal, or effective, management control of
any company or other entity in which it invests or controls
more than 30% (or such other percentage as may from
time to time be specified in the Takeovers Code as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity; and

(ii) invest in any company or other entity if as a result, more
than 20% of the Company’s net asset value as at the date
of such investment would be invested in any one such
company or other entity.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which in collective term
includes all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are discussed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

(iv) EEEE BREXDEKZRE BT RAMT
MEBZEBATER FERBBRFT - HEE
BERPI SR 2 BT - 3 i % B BUR a5 B IR
BEDMAMBTACAEEAENZBESLR
HMWTHE -

ARG :

(i) BB EEREEALTIRGERE HE
R HE30% (U RE 7 R AT BE NI /] € /5 B
BHRVIMEEEBOZKFZEMBE D)
F2EMARSEMEEZETERERNE
BEGIE R

(i) REEAARAHEMER UBRARARE
HZBEREAHZEEFEBB20%RRE
REM—EEEARSEMLER
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The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16 Leases, and a
number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, none of the developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS
16 introduced a single accounting model for lessees,
which requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have
an impact or leases where the Group is the lessor. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from
IAS 17 substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under IAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. IFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in IFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed
as leases under IAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under IFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements
continue to be accounted for as executory contracts.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by IAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied the incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 5%.

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of IFRS
16:

(i) elected to apply the requirements of IFRS 16
in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of IFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

(i) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in a similar economic
environment;

(iii) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension
options;

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=

E-NEF+ZA=+—BLFE

(iv) excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

(v) relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying IAS 37 as an alternative to
an impairment review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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The following table reconciles the operating lease

commitments as disclosed in note 37 as at 31

December 2018 to the opening balance for lease

liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:

Operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018 disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements
Less: total future interest expenses

Present value of remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
of 5% and lease liabilities recognised as at 1

January 2019

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The right-of-use assets in relation to leases

previously classified as operating leases have

been recognised at an amount equal to the amount

recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the
statement of consolidated financial position at 31

December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The following table summaries the impacts of the
adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position:

Line items in the
consolidated statement of financial position
impacted by the adoption of IFRS 16

32 BRANED BR B 35 3R 5 RIS 1657
YENGEMBRRARZER :

Assets
BE
Right-of-use assets

EREEE

Liabilities
afE

Lease liabilities
HEAE

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as
a lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as compared to the results if IAS 17 had
been applied during the year.
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In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their principal element and interest
element (note 35(b)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows and operating cash
outflows respectively. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of IFRS 16 therefore results
in a significant change in presentation of cash flows
within the cash flow statement (note 35(c)).

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the
Group’s financial result and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2019, by adjusting the amounts
reported under IFRS 16 in these consolidated
financial statements to compute estimates of
the hypothetical amounts that would have been
recognised under IAS 17 if this superseded standard
had continued to apply in 2019 instead of IFRS 16,
and by comparing these hypothetical amounts for
2019 with the actual 2018 corresponding amounts
which were prepared under IAS 17.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Amounts
reported
under
IFRS 16
RE
EREBERS
BRI E1658
EENEE
HK$’000
TER
Financial result for year ended SRAREERTBRE
31 December 2019 impacted by EAZ16RTENE
the adoption of IFRS 16: Z-E-NET+ZA
ST-HLEENRE
£
Loss from operation LeER (31,632)
Finance costs BEKAK (3,729)
Loss before tax and loss for the year RABEREAER (35,361)
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2019
“E-NE
Deduct:
estimated
amounts

Add back: related to
IFRS 16 operating

depreciation lease as if
and interest  under IAS 17

expense (note 1 & 2)
A
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e RRMM

ERBERE 8 HEORE
EAZ16% EBREHED
FER EVE
FEBX (li1ke)
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347 (355)
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Hypothetical
amounts for

2019 as if
under IAS 17
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(31,640)
(3,715)
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—E-)\&

Compared to
amounts
reported for
2018 under
IAS 17
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HK$'000
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(74,291)
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Line items in the consolidated cash flow ~ ZRABEERTBRE
statement for year ended 31 December EAE16R T ENE
2019 impacted by the adoption of IFRS E-E-hETZA
16: St-BLEENRS

RERBRER

Cash used in operations memARe

Interest element of lease rentals paid BERBEERE ZFEHH

Net cash used in operating activities LeEamARRS

Capital element of lease rentals paid ENAERE ZERT S

Net cash used in financing activities METHMARERE

Note 1:

Note 2:

The “estimated amounts related to operating leases”
is an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in
2019 that relate to leases which would have been
classified as operating leases, if IAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. This estimate assumes that there
were no difference between rentals and cash flows
and that all of the new leases entered into in 2019
would have been classified as operating leases
under IAS 17, if IAS 17 had still applied in 2019. Any
potential net tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order to
compute hypothetical amounts of net cash generated
from operating activities and net cash used in
financing activities as if IAS 17 still applied.

Amounts
reported
under IFRS 16

RE
ERHBRE
EHE16%
SHENEE
HK$’000
FER

(5,611)
(14)
(9,537)
(341)
32,944

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reform?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 between an Investor and
its Associate or and IAS

28 (2011) Joint Venture?

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material’
IAS 8

g Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

& Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined. Early adoption is permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets
at FVTOCI.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the
noncontrolling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=

E-NEF+ZA=+—BLFE

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of the
net investment in foreign entities are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease
but not exceeding 5 years

Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss on derecognition of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

EGAHBRARRN  NE  BERRAN
ES XY PR T FES R
(WAt -

BERARBERAESAKE T RKEAZIR
BB RKGERNZ - MZEB KA EE
ARGERN  TEREEEMNREENER
R-EEBEE(RER) MBEHMEEE
REEENRABANBRANER -

WE - BERREBOFERBEREEME
152 1 55 7 PO 2 T2 S 85 L AR AN 9 6 SRR
HREEFE TEFERMT

HEMEEE THE - BT HBIASE
AR 20%
RMREE 20%

BENRGKEE ERSwMTEEESHE
BEMRETRS  REEEHAE -

—EPE BERRBNEERHKARES
ERZAEEERS N BELERREHENmER
IEFERR « R ILFERME - B E MR R H E(A
Wk BRI HEMSRIB R ERREE
FHECMNERE  UNBHEER -

Annual Report 20195



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets not
exceeding 5 years.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in lease
liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of
its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks and rewards incidental to of ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases.
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Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Debt investments held by the Group are classified into AEBRENEETES AL THMETE8E

one of the following measurement categories: Al

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the — BB - WEBEFERRELHORE R
collection of contractual cash flows which represents 2 BEEAEINAREERFE - HEF
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest BRAERBERFEEFE -

income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

— FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows — ?;z’&ﬁ REMEEK IR — 7] #
of the investment comprise solely payments of CHIEEMNEANREREHLRBRIEE
principal and interest and the investment is held Eﬁﬁzﬁr‘z&ﬂ%ﬂ’\]ﬁﬁﬁ CBEEBFRE
within a business model whose objective is achieved MEBEAEERBERKDEGHRS
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and MERENE AABEEHNEME2EK
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other miER - WTEHEEEE - FEWA(F
comprehensive income, except for the recognition REBRAEETE) RE X m R EER
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest BERER RIEBREEE  Htte2E
income (calculated using the effective interest KRRt emmEaBEEE=Ea -

method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

— FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria — BAAEREBERERIER WMRESKE
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI RESK AR AABEREME2E RS
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the FIER (AT E)MEXR - BE(BIEFE)
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit AREZHRIBRER -
or loss.
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An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Other receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=

E-NEF+ZA=+—BLFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consisting of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert the
loans into equity of the Group, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve. The liability component
is carried as a liability at amortised cost using the
effective interest method until extinguished on conversion
or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion related to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.
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Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

TEEFBRNEGRHNEE(ERERS
HEREREAEEDN T ERLAHEMEDN
BE)NBE BEFLENBRKER B
EZEEEE LCEI T ERLATHEMNE
ZHHFAZEENKA—F D - EPIE K
ERENSRUENEENIH A BIEER
MREMBEBNKRE RS  BRTEERL
iR AF B9 B SRR AN AR 0B e

RR—RIBAEAERFTEKENEER
ANEBEEME  AERERENERKEE
BIIERANZEENTHERNEXRGFE - &
RERTIRBMBETAGENEENFEFER
VASINIA HA P P9 1 K (B8 B 7R 5= B 15 308 R 19
I0HE T3 B RAA o

PrEEMERKARERLZENHRNER
FER -

FIERESE AR BINRERIBEN L -

EHRNBARRBEFRATMSRAE
B - EANMSREEERENERNNE
TR AAEARASRETERETAEEM
FEANEREERTHERTEEIER @t
TERTERIXTAENNIEAR - AEE/N
EMNAEAERAEREHRRLECHTHE
HLERTHRKRGE -

Annual Report 20195



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

RAEASERRAECAEEEREFEHEHESR
ENEHERXZMELERE  AEEEHLEE
BEHNRREERBRNERAREEXTER

& o

REBBHNREBEAHEAGHERSME
AEERFERELEERTEAEE L ERBER
SEERFE12FEMNATE - ARER VL HER
e FRAEEERMEAGMNEREESE
WARRV TS ERE KRB RARER -

EFENENRAEREEEENHBREEDN
EEREMN  MEEHBEEMAGEEBHR—
B HEBRMPIEH AR - I B ANEEIT
Euéﬁﬁﬁmﬁiéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

CREMBEEMBELERBBES EHEE
E%

FERMEENRESRESERSE BETR
ACOARRESERRELRE  WREE
HAERE ABREGABaERFERLER
HEFTAKREEE R BERARER -7
W@i@%ﬂ%é?%i’%#%ﬁ??z
ELERNEBYNEMEENEEMANE S
MAERBAT AIREZXEEMBNSE
TELETHAKROEE - JREESHELSE
REERARERENEEXRSELET
MEERAMETRSE -

FREEREE, BReEHETHMEITRRE

Iﬁimuimfﬁﬂﬁ °© fﬂ@fﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ifﬁgﬁvﬁﬁ

@ﬂﬁ?/ﬁé?ﬁ%i&a%%ﬁ@%ﬁi
PRV ATHTIR KA E -

ReEHETHNREBREESELIEBEESE
THRNEE  BRUEVIEHREZRSELE
THEMEE - & ARG EHMER
BRI UR Bl & BRIE NEt AME R - FRIF R EER
@ o

Annual Report 20195



For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including other receivables, loans notes, due
from securities brokers and bank balances). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for other
receivables, loans notes and due from securities brokers,
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of other
receivables, loans notes and due from securities brokers
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The
ECL on these assets are estimated using an analysis of
assets by risk level of customers and apply a probability-
weighted estimate of the credit losses within the relevant
risk type. The probability-weighted estimates of the credit
losses is determined based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of
on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at
the reporting date or an actual default occurring since
initial recognition.
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In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from financial analysts
and governmental bodies, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrate otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default
(i.e. no default history), (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a financial instrument to have low credit risk when it has
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group also
considers that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are past due over one year, whichever is
earlier. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised directly
in profit or loss.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
end of each reporting period.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured to cater for cases where
evidence of significant increase in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available. The
financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:
— Nature of financial instruments;

— Past-due status;

— Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

— External credit ratings where available.
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The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12m ECL at the current
reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
the profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

As mentioned in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had subscribed 20% equity interest
of an Anguilla incorporated private entity, Perfect Path
Limited (the “Perfect Path”). Despite the Group holds
20% of the voting power in Perfect Path, the unlisted
equity investment is designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI but not an associate under IAS 28 “Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures”. The management is
of the opinion that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path as (i) the Group has no right
to be represented in the board of directors of Perfect
Path; and (ii) the remaining equity interest, being 80%
equity interest of Perfect Path is owned by another single
shareholder other than the Group.

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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The unlisted investments of the Group designated at
financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets at FVTOCI
have been valued using the market observable data
of comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount or based on the expected future
cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics. These
valuations require the management to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and
discount rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.
The aggregated fair value of the unlisted investments at
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$48,920,000
(2018: HK$88,433,000). Further details are set out in
notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes provision for impairment of loan notes,
deposits and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward—looking estimates at the end of reporting
period. The amount of the impairment loss based on
ECL model is measured at the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

During the year, impairment losses of approximately
HK$2,598,000 (2018: HK$4,992,000) and HK$538,000
(2018: HK$351,000) had been recognised on loan notes
and deposits and other receivables respectively.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The board of directors
review and agree policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.
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The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as certain of the Group’s bank balances are denominated
in United State dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$ remains
pegged to the US$. This analysis is performed on the
same basis for the prior year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

As set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s listed investments were
designated at financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group’s investments in listed equity securities are
exposed to equity price risk. The management manages
this exposure by monitoring the change of market prices
of the equity from time to time, and by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk. As at 31 December
2019, if the fair value of the Group’s listed investments
designated at financial assets at FVTPL had been 5%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net loss would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$364,000 (2018: HK$1,591,000).

The carrying amount of other receivables, deposits, loan
notes, due from securities brokers and bank balances
included in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to concentrations of
credit risk. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has
significant concentrations of credit risk as the Group’s
100% (2018: 80%) of the carrying amount of loan notes
were subscribed from three issuers (2018: two issuers).
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In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated
its finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s
credit risk grading to categories exposures according to
their degree of risk of default. The finance team uses
publicly available financial information and the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major
debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit rating of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:
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For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessments on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits. The Group has assessed
that the ECL of other receivables and deposits was
approximately HK$538,000 (2018: HK$351,000) as at 31
December 2019 under 12m ECL model.

The Group measures loss allowances for loan notes
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different debtors,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different debtors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan notes
and deposits as at 31 December 2019:

Current (not past due) B HA (K #60 H)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the loan
notes.

The credit risk on amounts due from securities brokers is
limited because the counterparties are well-established
securities broker firms in Hong Kong which are subject
to compliance requirement under Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s loan notes, amounts due from/to securities
brokers, convertible bonds and promissory notes bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject
to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits. These bank deposits bear interests
at floating rates varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

TERREHEBEAEER_FT-NAF+_A
ST -HZEREBREERARREREES
BHER :

Expected Gross carrying

loss rate amount Loss allowance
EHEEE BEREE EEEE
HK$’'000 HK$’000

% FA& T FHT

6.48% 86,675 (5,619)

BHMEREXDEARNBE=ZFNEREBRLR
B - ZEFLREHEBARRKE B E SR
Z B R OB AR R~ TR AR A e AN &2 B
EXERRAFHARLBERARNZBEZNT
B

BRESERRENEERREARY - A
RETEEREZLNESRLT  HEANE
(BHEEBE(EPFRB)RADNERBAE -

REGHROEEAREERYN  BANY L
h I 15 PR AT A A 8 T B 45 B AT AR RO 8B
7 o

AEENERERE Bl EAHEFELK
B AT EIRE 5 PR RIRE E M REEF
B -RAUtEEBEAARERNERR -

AEBEBONERERIRERITHER - %5
RITE IR BRARR & 1 15 A0 Bk = 1) B
FEEAEFE -



Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest
rate risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will not have

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities is as follows:

On demand

and less than

At 31 December 2019 R=ZZ-NLF
+=A=+-H

Due to securities brokers JE 1 38 5 8 42 ;B

Other payables and accruals HtERNRREGTER

Lease liabilities HEAR

Promissory notes AR

At 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\F
+:ﬂ:+75

Due to securities brokers J& < & 5 A8 42 30T

Other payables and accruals H A AT R &JEqu%ﬁ

Convertible bonds AERES

Promissory notes EANES

1 year
RERRK
—£HR
HK$'000

FET

2,011
1,347

300
1,491

5,149

5,190
3,801
33,600
1,124

43,715

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Br ExCPraiE SN - RBER  AEE I E
@Eﬂﬁ‘r@iﬁ#mﬁ?&’%ﬁ H Mg
EHEMBEABR LB IR WS EES - A

RIGEHMENGEAEESE I EHAEE
M BEBERBREAZE At - XEHR
EREN KRR BREBIESA -

AEENBAREHERNARBERAREE
DERCANEREEFEAHEHEE - DOW
Eﬁg%&ﬁ%m@§%%g°

AEENFTESHEBBERESORTER
QE/ALEHT{}EE"] J%ﬁﬁt ;ZDT
Between Between

1and 2 years 2and5years Over5years

—FE@MFE WMEERIF EFHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT
213 — -

1,491 12,899 10,200
1,704 12,899 10,200
8,274 18,752 —
8,274 18,752 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Financial assets: cRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost HHBBERAAENSREE 132,920 76,133
Financial assets at FVTPL EARBERERRIIEKZ
D RELEE 26,806 85,069
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAREREMAZEKEIERZ
TREE 29,400 35,176
Financial liabilities: TREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBESRAINRzEREBE 24,105 61,455

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to

valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at

the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

REMBRRRAMRRAEESBEE R
TREBEENEASREROESANARE -
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5% HE-BREEMERIREBE -RAE
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BER  BRAEERERNGERMTEAE
N R=ERER :

ER VEIN-EEN Y. [ 3P L T
AAEXABEERTH L AERENRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers AEBENBRERESHELEERNERNERNE
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or MNEESCNBERBRAEARELE =B I+HH
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. ] — & -
2019
“E-hEF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE—EBR BEZER B=ZEBR &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET FER FER
Recurring fair value BHENDAETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RAREREBERR
JIRZSREE
Equity securities held for R 5 MEH M E R
trading at market value listed &% @ ZMBEE -
in Hong Kong Bk LM 7,286 — — 7,286

Convertible bonds designated 5 F A& A E
at financial assets at FVTPL REZRIERZ 8
BEEMNHERES — — 19,520 19,520
Equity investments designated 1EE AEALBRE
at financial assets at FVTOCI {2 E U z=5IBEZ S

MEENRERE — — 29,400 29,400
Total recurring fair value FEHNQNERFE
measurements il 7,286 — 48,920 56,206
2018
—E2-N\%F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—[ER F_EBNX FZEBX &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Recurring fair value BENAAEBETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RAREREBERR
JIfR e MEE
Equity securities held for RXHMEERER
trading at market value listed %% - LB EE
in Hong Kong BEFLE™ 31,812 — — 31,812

Convertible bonds designated 5 F A A E
at financial assets at FVTPL REZRIEZ 8
BEMA EIRES — — 39,715 39,715
Private equity fund designated 18E A A R E N8
at financial assets at FVTPL mERIBE 2 ERMEE
MALEES — — 13,542 13,542
Equity investments designated 1 E A AR ERE
at financial assets at FVTOCI 2 EW 5K 2 &

MEENRERE — — 35,176 35,176
Total recurring fair value BENARENE
measurements &5 31,812 — 88,433 120,245
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfer of financial assets from Level 3 to

other levels of hierarchy.

The following table presents the movements in Level 3
instruments of the Group during the year.

At 1 January
Total gains or losses
recognised
— in profit or loss
(included in revenue
and other gains and
losses)
— in other comprehensive
income
Disposals

At 31 December

At 1 January
Total gains or losses
recognised
— in profit or loss
(included in revenue
and other gains and
losses)
— in other comprehensive
income
Purchases
Disposals

At 31 December
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Convertible

bonds
designated
at financial

BES

5 %

| N i

T BB
2 BB
o1 S St

o < I N =

w
et
N
-
o

(881)

(19,314)

19,520

Convertible
bonds
designated
at financial
assets

at FVTPL

e
BIN

Iﬁﬁ> /|<_~_¢_}
TN =P}

=
SHERID

=
o
ol S YRR

=
=
-
o
]
w

(9,939)

(61,419)

39,715

REE_ZFT—NLFR_ZTE—-—NF+=A

=+ BHLEEE ¥EEF=

BREHMER -

BANERMEE

T%ﬂﬁﬂﬁirﬁ AEBE=EXRIA

2019

—2-n%
Private Equity
equity fund investments
designated designated
at financial at financial
assets assets
at FVTPL at FVTOCI
BEH BEERIRE
BAARE AAERER
REEEERE TERSIE
ZEMEE  CLMEE
WAEES HWRERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THERT
13,542 35,176
(4,542) (1,676)
— 400
(9,000) (4,500)
— 29,400

2018

—E-)N\F
Private Equity
equity fund investments
designated designated
at financial at financial
assets assets
at FVTPL at FVTOCI
EEA T B
_ _BRARE RRERER
RIBEEFE 2ER5505
CEMEE CoMEE
Wi EES B AR 1% &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(5,459) —
— 8,676
19,001 26,500
13,542 35,176

Total

oﬂb
Hloﬂ”’

HK$

88,433

(7,099)

400
(32,814)

48,920

Total

mo
HK$’000
Tt

111,073

(15,398)
8,676

45,501
(61,419)

88,433



The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the board of directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the board of directors
at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged independent valuation experts with recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to
perform the valuations.

The valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the
Level 3 fair value measurements are set out below:

Description Valuation technique
Convertible bond investments Hull and Partial
designated at financial assets Differential models:

at FVTPL — Discount rate
Private equity fund designated Asset Approach
at financial assets at FVTPL — Net assets value
method
Equity investments designated Income Approach
at financial assets at FVTOCI — Discount cash flow
method

The information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement is set out below.

The fair value of the convertible bonds designated at
financial assets at FVTPL is estimated using Hull and
Partial Differential model. The inputs into the valuation
model as at 31 December 2019 were set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

$EEMWW#% Wﬁﬁ%%%méé

%°M%@%E&ﬁ§$ %%%@m@
%%°WF@%£§$A?mt¢ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ERERGERETT®R -

T

ERE=—ERAALEFE ASECERA
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HEIT(HE ©
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BEFRE — IR =K
BERBRAAREREBRE AEE
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WLEES
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=

E-NEF+ZA=+—BLFE

The higher of the price per share and expected volatility
would increase the fair value of the convertible bonds
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The
lower of the price per share and expected volatility
would decrease the fair value of the convertible bonds
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of private equity fund designated at
financial assets at FVTPL is estimated using asset
approach. The inputs into the valuation model as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The higher of the asset per share would increase the fair
value of the private equity fund designated at financial
assets at FVTPL. The lower the asset share would
decrease the fair value of private equity fund designated
at financial asset at FVTPL.

The fair value of the equity investments designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI is estimated using income
approach. The inputs into the valuation model as at
31 December 2019 were set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The higher of the price per share and lower of the
discount rate would increase the fair value of the equity
investments designated at FVTOCI. The lower of the price
per share and higher of the discount rate would decrease
the fair value of the equity investments designated at
FVTOCI.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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For management purposes, the Group’s business activity
is organised into a single operating segment, being
investments in securities listed on recognised stock
exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation. Accordingly, no
operating segment information to be presented.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue, other revenue and other gains and losses by
geographical location which is based on the country
of domicile or place of listing of the investees and
counterparties as appropriate:

Revenue and other revenue WA R E At g A
Hong Kong BB

Other gains and (losses) HialezE & (EE)
Hong Kong BB

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no dividend income from the Group’s unlisted
investments.

Non-current assets are not presented in the geographical
information as they are all located in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

B REENEREDEBNE
— @R MRENERTEET DAL
T2EARABRFEERE A EE
M ETRE - Eit WA REE H B
K -

EE
Al%
) M

4

TRERBRERRIERZHFOHEEBERHL
i (RERBAME) D HMEBNE
s AREE WA~ E A WA R B Al W 28
REBELHDT

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F& T
8,988 11,222
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F& T
(34,337) (75,961)
REE=_ZT—NLER=_FT—N\NF+=A

SH-BUEER AEENELTREY
e R B K2

TERFADEEIRHLRER ERER
MUREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Interest income from:
— bank deposits
— loan notes
— convertible bonds designated at
financial assets at FVTPL

Other payables written back
Sundry income

MBWA
—RITER
—EXER
—HEERBARLER
BaRRIIKRZ
T REEMN A BRES

S 7 A5 R
5 1R W 2
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2019
—E-hF
HK$°000
TER

5,877

3,110

8,988

2019

o
HK$’000
FHT

2018
—E2—N\F
HK$’000
FH T

1,483

9,327

10,812

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
TETT

120
290

410



Unrealised fair value (losses)/gains on

financial assets at FVTPL:
— listed securities
— unlisted convertible bonds

designated at financial assets at

FVTPL

— Private equity fund designated at

financial assets at FVTPL
Net realised loss on disposals of
financial assets at FVTPL:
— listed securities
— unlisted convertible bonds

designated at financial assets at

FVTPL

Gain on disposals of unlisted convertible
bonds designated at financial assets

at FVTPL
Loss on disposals of private equity

fund designated at financial assets

at FVTPL

Net loss on financial assets at FVTPL

Net realised loss on disposals
of unlisted equity investments
designated at financial assets
at FVTOCI

Net realised loss on disposals of
loan notes

Impairment losses on loan notes

Impairment losses on deposits and
other receivables
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Be MEMEWES

SO 1B & 18

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

2019 2018
—EF-hF =i s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT F#& T
(9,025) (10,817)
(2,146) 1,778

— (5,459)

(9,903) (45,350)
(1,845) (15,851)

— 5,081
(4,542) —
(27,461) (70,618)
(1,676) —
(2,064) —
(2,598) (4,992)
(538) (351)
(34,337) (75,961)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Imputed interest on shareholder’s loan % 3 & 3 & & &1 & 2,193 1,710
Imputed interest on convertible bonds A & 1 & % 4 & £ B — 651
Imputed interest on promissory notes ANEHEFE 1,317 1,618
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 14 =
Interest on other borrowings H b & 5K A 2 205 188
3,729 4,167
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging the MRBAIEEE IR T &8 -
following:
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Auditor’s remuneration % S B B 320 295
Management fees EEE 1,277 1,474
Exchange loss, net X 1R - FE — 4
Depreciation of property, M- BEREETE
plant and equipment 9 14
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 347 —
Employee benefits expenses: EERAAXL :
— Salaries, allowance and — ¥ EMEEDN=
benefits in kind 1,591 2,672
— Contributions to defined — REHREEIH R
contribution plan*® 34 58
1,625 2,730
Operating leases in respect of land and 3 }2 18 5 7 48 & 8 47
buildings — 570
b There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined G R-ZEBE—NWER-_TE—N\FE+-_A=+—BIFER
contribution plan available at 31 December 2019 and 2018 ERREE 2B 2 WA AT A EIE 8 AR R -
to reduce future contributions. There was no outstanding R-ZE—NEER_ZE—N\F+_A=+—8BnNE
contribution to the plan at 31 December 2019 and 2018. AR ZE e 2 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in REEFEEA - B SE E I &S ET A
the consolidated financial statements since the Group has no B ANTEESEEPBRRANTIREBFERH
estimated assessable profit for the both years. B o
Reconciliation between income tax and the product of the AR EEIZERMEAE 2RI EEE 2
Group’s loss before tax at applicable tax rate is set out below: HERFZWAT :
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FBT
Loss before tax B AT & 18 (35,361) (78,458)
Notional tax on loss before tax, RERBEBZ2EREIR
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax B BRI E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZB—\F :16.5%) & (5,835) (12,946)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MBEEME A EINATZ
for tax purpose g2 2,361 3,277
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R MR T H E 18 2 T 15 2 £ 3,474 9,671
Tax effect of temporary differences not KEHRLRHEZHE 2 H G E
recognised — (2)
Income tax Fr 5 %t — =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-Z-—hF+-A=1+—HILEE

Executive Directors:
Chau Wai Hing'
Wu Ming Gai

Chan Carman Wing Yan?

Non-executive Directors:
William Keith Jacobsen

Chen Albert3

Wong Chung Yan Sammy*

Independent Non-executive

Directors:
Chan Man Yi®
Leung Yin Ting®
Jiang Qian’

HOTES !
& {8 Bt
kA
BR kR

FHTES:
ERH
BR A 183
B

BUFHTES:

R Ee

SR T
2 H e

E
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Fees

ik
HK$°000
TER

144
180
168

120
120
120

852

2019
ZE-NF

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances and contribution
benefits in kind plan
Fe 2R RE MK
REMFH# st 8l
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET THER
69 3
144 7
204 11
417 21

Total

BE
HK$°000
TERT

72
151
215

144
180
168

120
120
120

1,290



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

2018
—E-N\&F
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances and contribution
Fees benefits in kind plan Total
e 2R REMHRK
e REY R &= sTEIE RG]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FTER FTERT TERT
Executive Directors: HITES !
Chau Wai Hing' [ {& Et — 486 18 504
Wu Ming Gai HR e 1= — 137 7 144
Non-executive Directors: EHTEE .
William Keith Jacobsen HEEH 144 — — 144
Mak Hing Keung Thomas? 75 B 58 261 — — 261
Chen Albert? PeR 1158 75 — — 75
Hui Man Ho Ivan? Bk 79 = = 79
Wong Chung Yan Sammy* w4 1 — — 1
Independent Non-executive BIFHTEE :
Directors:
Sio Chan In Devin1 BERL 160 — — 160
Law Siu Hung Paul'! E 1N 84 — — 84
Wong Ching Wan' THEE® 84 — — 84
Wong Chung Yan Sammy* T 129 — — 129
Chan Man Yis FeR & 555 44 — — 44
Leung Yin Ting® 2 3% 126 6 — — 6
Jiang Qian’ BR 6 — — 6
1,073 623 25 1,721

1 Chau Wai Hing resigned as a executive director on 18

February 2019.

2 Chan Carman Wing Yan was appointed as an executive
director on 25 February 2019.

9 Chen Albert was appointed as a non-executive director on 1

August 2018.

4 Wong Chung Yan Sammy was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 23 March 2018 and re-designated

as non-executive director on 14 December 2018.

5 Chan Man Yi was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 21 August 2018.

6 Leung Yin Ting was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 14 December 2018.

AREEER-_F-NAF-A+/\BEEH

RAMR-_TE-—NF-_A=-THHAEZER
HITES -

REER T NFNA-BEZERFEHR
TES -
BRCR-_ZE-—NF=A-+=AEZEA
BUFRTES YR T N\F+-A+H
REFEAFENTES -

REBER_ZT-NFNA_+—-HEZER
BIYIFRATES -

REENR_ZF-N\FT_ATHBEEERER
BUYFATESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

v Jiang Qian was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 14 December 2018.

@ Mak Hing Keung Thomas resigned as a non-executive
director on 19 November 2018.

9 Hui Man Ho Ivan retired as a non-executive director on 28
June 2018.

0 Sio Chan In Devin resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 14 December 2018.

" Law Siu Hung Paul retired as an independent non-executive
director on 28 June 2018.

2 Wong Ching Wan retired as an independent non-executive
director on 28 June 2018.

Note: There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2018: three)
Directors whose emoluments were disclosed above. The

BN - N\ET_ATHNBEZEAESB
MIEMITES -

BEEN _Z—NF+— A+ NLABEEHR
TES -

HXERZE-—NFRAZTNBEEEH
TE=E -

BEAR - N\FT-_ATHBBESL
FHTES -

BOBR -_Z-—NFRA-TNBREBL
FERITES -

FTEER_Z-NFRA-TNRBREBY
FHTES -

Krat - FRALEEREEH 2 KR E % ERMH

TH L e

FRAAKREBELEGERFALTREDA(Z
E-N\F:ZR)EF HEHM2CELXE
B -FAESK-—RB(ZE-N\F : WB)AL

emoluments of the remaining one (2018: two) individual(s) FEdmZEEMe T -
and four Directors above-mentioned during the year are
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
Salaries, allowances and e EUREDAR
benefits in kind 867 919
Contributions to defined FOE R ET B K
contribution plan 27 32
Discretionary bonus 15 AT 13 —
907 951

During the year, there was no discretionary cash bonus
paid or payables to the Directors and approximately
HK$13,000 paid to one of the five highest paid individuals
(2018: Nil).

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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Senior management represents the executive directors.
The emoluments paid or payable to senior management
during the year are as follows:

Directors’ fees EEHe

Salaries, allowances and Fe  FUREMAZ
benefits in kind

Contributions to defined FE G EI R

contribution plan

The emoluments paid or payable to the three (2018: two)
members of senior management were within the band
from nil to HK$1,000,000.

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

BRERBENGTES - NEAEENEM K
ENEREREHHHET :

2019 2018
—g-n% —-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T
417 623

21 25

438 648

ENFEN=2(ZTE—N\F: WB)aRE
BE K 8 R EH S N FZ=1,000,000% 7T 2
gE -

BARE M MRMEISMBEE I RER
FFERNEMER BEFALARASEBLD
Hep—7  BARREEREENEH IR
EEHEAEFERARENEARE 2AEHE
EB2ERRS  LHRALD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the RATEAEARBETRERNERBIZATSE:T
owners of the Company is based on the following data: 8
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss for the purposes of basic ERERNBEGTES
loss per share FrA®EE (35,361) (78,458)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
000 000
T T &
(Restated)
(FeEat)
Issued ordinary shares at RE D EITH L @R
the beginning of year 119,909 85,929
Effect of shares issued on placements B ERFETRHHFE — 12,757
Effect of rights issue (note 31(3)) MR B & (H7£31(3)) 59,633 4,590

Weighted average number of ordinary &% & A E18 5+ &
shares for the purpose of calculating Fr A 9 35 38 AR 79 hn A 239 2K

basic loss per share 179,542 103,276
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the BE_ZT—NWFER-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—81t
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose FE - BREANESEE AT AT BRI
of calculating basic loss per share has been adjusted to take FHHEEHARE  UEHLEETERERMIE31(3)
into effect of the rights issue as set out in note 31(3) to the FEmERER  BHEEE T —N\NF—HF—
consolidated financial statements as if it had been effective on HARR IR AE R ©

1 January 2018.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share HE_T-hFERZE—N\F+A=+—H1t
amount presented for the years ended 31 December 2019 FE EEE/\\IE, EEESE LT BIRTEE  FTAIE
and 2018 as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares HII TN EREANEESHEELHE -
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend EEefEBEREE T NFER_ZE—\F
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. TZAZT—HLEFERMRKRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Office Furniture and

equipment fixtures Total
BAERE BRREE &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT T
Cost 5N
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—N\F—HA—H 533 572 1108
Additions NE 4 — 4
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—H"
and 31 December 2019 —E-NF-A—Bk
—E-hE+ZA=+—H 537 572 1,109
Accumulated depreciation REITE
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—N\&—A—H 508 568 1,076
Provided for the year FREE 10 4 14
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R=-Z— N\F+-A=+—HR
“Z-NF-HA—H 518 572 1,090
Provided for the year FREE 9 = 9
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NEFE+-_A=+—H 527 572 1,099
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 RZBE-NFE+ZA=+—8H 10 — 10
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—H 19 — 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Leased

Properties

HEWE

HK$’000

THET

At 1 January 2019 (note 3) R=ZF—NnE—A—8(#i#3) 266
Additions NE 556
Depreciation e (347)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-—h&E+=-A=+—8H 475

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$490,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$475,000 as at 31 December 2019. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

R-ZZE-—hFT+ZA=+—8 BEERAEE
5 {5 49490,00078 7T M A0 B #O £ A & E 4
475,000 T - FHEBEABANEEEEH
M EREZR SN - HE T 5 E A H bR
B -HEEETSARERER -

2019

—E-hEF

HK$°000

FHT

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FTRAEEENITEEZR 347
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in HEBENMEXZ (B AREKR)

finance cost) 14

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note
35(c).

For both years, the Group leases an office for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

HERSRERLAENFHAEEHNHE
35(c)

RMER AEEEE-—FEHAZERANE
o HERRNEHMETL - HEFRTD
PERERE LR - 88BN RR R4
H-NEEABRRFETAIREHEFNEE
B AEBRERASRANERLETERS R AR
T RORME o



Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, FEFRF(HEMTE
inclusive BEEAN)

o RSB A

Less: Future finance charges
Present value of lease HERMTERE
obligations

Less: Amount due for settlement & : 121& B A Z| 8 &9 f& 1
within 12 months (shown under FIE(EEREEE T HE
current liabilities) )

1218 A 12 B B 10 F& A 508

Amount due for settlement after
12 months

All finance lease payables are denominated in HKS.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. Comparative information
as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated. Further
details on the impact of the transition to IFRS 16 are set
out in note 3.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

RE-F-NFI-A=T-HLAEE

Present value of

Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEEERIE REAERERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NAF ZZE—NF ZE-AFE ZZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET FTHERT FHETT
300 — 282 —
213 — 208 —
513 — 490 —
(23) — NATBA NATEHA
490 — 490 —
(282) —
208 —

MERMERERNRELAETAHE -

AEBCDNTRALETHEPETTEER
BRI BmEEAFE165  UR T —NF
— A — BB EE - PARE R B L AT R IR
BERgt R FEI7TRERRAKCEHEENHE
EFENEEEE BE_ZE-/\F+R
ST -HMEBREMBAER - BRRAKE
BB REENFI6RNTENE - LB
M3
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the
cash generating unit (“CGU”) that is expected to benefit from
that business combination. Before recognition of impairment
losses, the carrying amount of goodwill amounting to
HK$38,000 had been allocated to Studio V Limited (“Studio
V"), a subsidiary of the Company, which is considered to be a
single CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted revenue during the period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the businesses
which the CGU operates. Budgeted revenue is based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group prepared
cash flow forecasts derived from the then most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period using the growth rate of 5%.
This rate did not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant businesses. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the CGU was 7.3%.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
had revised its budget and cash flow forecast of Studio
V as a result of change in market condition. The goodwill
has therefore reduced to its recoverable amount through
recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of
HK$38,000.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

BE-_ZT—AE+t-A=+—BHIFER -
TEEHPUBNEECRERSE TEH
ERZECEAHNBESCELEL(BRESED
Bl EHRREEEN BENEESHE
38,0007 7T & & 5 B F AN 2 & M} B 2 7] Studio V
Limited ([Studio V) - E#E R 5% —REEL S
=

REeELETNRIKRESHEREREESER
EoEREEFENERBRRABREHEAHEA
FRE BREERBERANRR - AKEER
RREAMSHEEHMEENFERRSEN
EXRARBABAANERMEFFITRE - BREN
REeERETMREEBNRATHEERERE
RER - ARERANEEHOERE TS ERNTE
HIRER -

HE_ZT—RET_HA=+—HILFE  ~5E
RIBEFERRRAFHENE K RO B R
ERHARSMETBR - R erHRE B R A5%H) 18
X -ZREEXTHEMBEBNTFHRMEER
X -FARFRACELETELANTRARSRE
B A & 7.3% °

RBE-_F—tHF+_A=t—BLFER"
MRmISRREE Bt - AEBSKETES
Studio VATEMTEE MRS RETRAR - Eit - &
BELE BEREEREEE38,00008 TR E
HA a5 e



Consideration receivables (note a)
Other receivables

Deposits paid for investments (note b)
Other deposits

Prepayments

Less: non-current portion of
consideration receivables

Current portion

Notes:

WK AB (B ita)

H i & WK

IR E P RS (F7 52b)
Hipig &

84 3R IR

o B EIANBES

p]

B AR &8 5

N

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, consideration
receivables which was arising from the disposal of private
equity fund designated at financial assets at FVTPL by a cash
consideration of HK$9,000,000. The consideration is to be settled
by 18 instalments of each HK$500,000. During the year, provision
for impairment of approximately HK$20,000 is made for 12m ECL
on the balance, the balance did not past due. No ageing analysis
to be disclosed in respect of other receivables. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
8,980 /

— 149

14,631 15,149

53 17

210 449
23,874 15,764
(3,000) -
20,874 15,764

et -

(a)

REZZZ-NFT_A=+—HIEFER K
3 £ K (89,000,0008 THEHE R ALEBERIE
BRIFECEREENTLEESELBKRMKE -
RERIAF (500,000 T 2185 RD PEH - ©
AEERN  RE+T _EAABREEEERERE
BB f54920,000/8 7T - ZE 45 6A 0 B H - U0
HREMEBRKBRERERON - ARXAEERE
ERAEBEMEBEE  REDWALBEIMERE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-T

“NETEAE+ HIEEE

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Deposits paid for investments represent earnest money amounted
to HK$10,000,000 (“Deposit 1”) and HK$5,500,000 (“Deposit
2”) paid by the Group for the proposed investments to two
independent third parties.

Deposit 1

On 5 November 2018, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MoU 1”) with an independent third party
(“Issuer 1”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay the
Deposit 1 to the Issuer 1 as an earnest money for the proposed
acquisition of shares in the principal amount of HK$10,000,000
to be issued by the Issuer 1 (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The
completion of the Proposed Acquisition is subject to the fulfillment
of conditions precedent of the MoU 1 including satisfaction of due
diligence works on Issuer 1.

On 30 December 2018, 10 June 2019 and 18 December 2019,
the Company entered into three extension agreements with
the Issuer 1, to extend the completion date of the Proposed
Acquisition to 30 June 2019, 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2020 respectively.

Deposit 2

On 12 August 2016, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MoU 2”) with an independent third party
(“Issuer 2”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay the
Deposit 2 to the Issuer 2 as an earnest money for the proposed
subscription of redeemable convertible notes in the principal
amount not exceeding HK$26,000,000 to be issued by the Issuer
2 (the “Proposed Subscription”). The completion of the Proposed
Subscription is subject to the fulfillment of conditions precedent of
the MoU 2 including satisfaction of due diligence works on Issuer
2.

On 4 October 2016, 30 December 2016, 31 March 2017, 16
June 2017, 1 January 2018, 1 July 2018, 30 December 2018 and
18 December 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement and seven supplemental subscription agreements
with the Issuer 2, to extend the completion date of the Proposed
Subscription to 31 December 2016, 31 March 2017, 30 June
2017, 31 December 2017, 30 June 2018, 31 December 2018, 30
June 2019 and 31 December 2020 respectively due to more time
is needed to conduct due diligence work on issuer 2.

The amount of deposits paid for investments is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within 5 days to 7 days upon request
in the event that the Proposed Acquisition and Proposed
Subscription are not completed.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision for
impairment of approximately HK$518,000 (2018: HK$351,000) is
made for 12m ECL on deposits.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

Hrat - (&)

(b)

MEEMTNNRESAAEERREIRERNRA
BUFE=FMXHHHES D 5410,000,0007 7T
(M%&4£11) %5,500,0003% 7T ([1R&2]) °

&1

R-ZZE—NE+—AHB  ARREBIE=H
(MEFETAMDITLFRBERS((RRERE]) -
BUHARRRERBETAIMNES  (EAREZK
BE 1% B 817 AP % 17 4N € %8 /10,000,000 7T 2
BH(TEZRESEDNHAES - ERWEEE
BRERBERSINEREEERBITERT STX -
HPBEHETAMETERES T(E-

R=ZF—NF+=A=+H —hEXA+A
E=Z—A+=A+N\R" K Tﬁ%ﬁAhﬁL
“HERWZE  DRBEZWRBEENTHK A H
BEE-_ZT—HhE~NA=Z1+H ZT—h&E+=
A=+—HAR=ZZT=_FTF+=_A=+—H-
&2

RZB-—ARFNA+ZH FARAREBILE=F
(BT AN LREESS(REERER2])
Bt - ARFIR B EERER B ETAET
AN & 7 8 26,000,000 JT 2 A] B [0 A ¥ #4 R 4R
(TZZRBERDXNZE2(ERAER) THT
A2 ZZRBERATRMAETEH20 L RGEM

EETR - HRITK c BBIKGRIEEEIT A28
TRBEEIIE-

R=ZZE—X"F+AmOAB  —E—X"F+=-_A=+
== ti:ﬂ:‘f’ A ZZ—tFXA8
+X8 -ZFE—N\F—A—H8 ZE—-N\FtA—

A 22— N \F+-_A=+tAKk=_ZE—NF+=A8
+NB ARREBEITA2TIRBHEREGHE

7t R B R LA%EUH%%EML\%ﬁlﬁﬁ’JEEXEIHE
L?E?;_g—/_\i‘f'_ﬂ*‘?' H JCE
EFEF—H - —tFRA= ‘f’Ei t
E+=-A=+— E| —TE-NFERA= TLEl

T-NF+=ZA=+—8H ‘:Z*ﬂﬁz/\ﬁ]:+
HA-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H BHAZEZEEZHH
NE BT AETEBEETE -

REREMINNRESBELEERT 2ERRE
FZUBERELEERBEETETETKNBERTA
EERMERETRAMEE -

RBEE-_T—NAF+-_A=+—HBLEFER R
%J%?Jr_ilﬁ%E,ngl%réﬁéﬁdz?ﬁ@aﬂmmﬁéﬁ%’U
518,000/ 7t (= Z — /\ 4 : 351,000 7T ) °



Issuer

Zhongda
International
Holdings Limited

AR B R o
BRAA]

(LN1)

(BEREE)

Zhongda
International
Holdings Limited

Hr K B B 2 R
BRAAE

(LN2)

(ERER2)

Zhongda
International
Holdings Limited

AR B R o
BRAA]

(LN3)

(BEREEI)

RIERBREE
AR R A
RIERBRBE
AR R A

(LN4)

(ERRE4)

R I [ B 5 MR
REAERRA A
R I 2 PR B B A
REAERRA A

(LN5)
(B RE#S5)

Date

=R

31 December 2019

—E-NF
+=HA=+—8

31 December 2018

—E-N\F
+t=—A=+—~R

31 December 2019

—E-NF
F=A=F=E

31 December 2018

—E—NF
+=A=+—8”

31 December 2019

—E-NF
+=ZA=+—8”

31 December 2018

—E-N\F
+—-—A=+—8

31 December 2019

—E-NHF
+=-A=+—8

31 December 2018

—ET—N\%F
+=—A=+—H

31 December 2019

—F-NAF+=A
= =F
31 December 2018
—E-N\%F
+=—A=+—8”

Subscription
amount

RETH
HK$’000
TR

3,000

3,000

5,500

24,000

24,000

24,000

24,000

Interest
receivables

FE W R 2
HK$’000
TATT

357

189

342

2,716

316

2,716

315

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Impairment
loss
recognised
during the
year
REFER
)
WAEE 8
HK$’000
THET

514

514

943

994

1,604

1,181

1,417

Carrying
amount

fRE B
HK$’000
TET

2,843

2,675

4,899

24,118

22,712

24,118

22,898

Interest
income
recognised
during the
period

RERER
B R B WA
HK$’000
TET

217

255

217

255

399

342

2,400

316

2,400

315
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Subscription

Interest

Issuer Date amount receivables
BITA = RESHE R R
HK$’000 HK$’000
F& T FHT
FYN BB E RS 31 December 2019
N T A 22 AR 7
BRAA 33,000
FYN BTG EHE —E—NF
NI M ZE AR 7 +=ZA=+—H
BRRA A
(LN6) 31 December 2018 =
(BERE#%6) —E-N\HF
+=—A=+—8”
Total 31 December 2019 81,000
FE —E—NF
+=—A=+—8”
31 December 2018 59,500
—E-)N\F
+=—A=+—H

(i)

On 8 August 2016 and 5 April 2017, the Group had
subscribed two trenches of HK$ denominated loan notes
(the “LN1” and “LN2"), of principal value of HK$3,000,000
each issued by an independent third party, Zhongda
International Holdings Limited, which is principally
engaged in trading of consumer electronic products, with
an aggregated amount of HK$6,000,000. On 9 April 2018,
the Group had further subscribed another trench of HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN3”), of principal value
of HK$5,500,000 issued by the issuer of LN1 and LN2.
LN1, LN2 and LN3 bear fixed interest at 8.5% per annum
with maturity of one year from their respective dates of
issue and are measured at amortised cost. No conversion
right is attached to LN1, LN2 and LN3 to be exercised by
the Company. On 7 August 2017, 28 March 2018 and 7
August 2018, the Company entered into three extension
agreements with the issuer, to extend the maturity
dates of LN1 and LN2 to 8 August 2018, 8 August 2019
and 5 April 2019. On 8 November 2019, both LN1, LN2
and LN3 were matured and exchanged for the LN6 as
defined below, resulting a loss on deemed disposal of
approximately HK$2,064,000 recognised in 2019.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

Impairment Interest
loss income
recognised recognised
during the Carrying during the
year amount period
REFER
R REBAER
B 1B 8RB B R B WA
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FETT FHET
423 32,821 244
2,598 81,057 5,877
4,992 56,027 1,483
RZZE-—AR"ENANBRZ=ZZE—tF WA

A AEEEREMBH—EZBILE=F
(P ARBRIERERAR  TEREETFHEE
EmES)ETHAS 53,000,000 7T A
TEREE(ERZE1RIEREEK2])

4858 46,000,000/ T - R—ZE— N\EMWA A
H AEEE—SPREZTERZER1IRE
NEB2M ET AT EITH AR £ 55,500,000
BITHNBTEREBRE((EREES]) - BEX
ZE ERZEBR2RERZRIZE T FEA
K85%tEHE - WAHS B EITHHRET
—FHHARRBHEAAGTE BEXRER1-
BEREE2RE 5 E R 330 £ M 55 (o] 65 2
BARATE -RZFE—EFNALRH =
E-NE=ZA-F+NBE-_ZE—NFENALt
H ARAEBITAFTLZEHERGZE - A
BEREBIREREBE2OEHRTEEE —
ZE—-NENANA —ZE-HAENANBE
—ET-AFMARER - R-_T—NAE+—A
NB BEFREE1 BERXRZB2RERZES
HEH - WHRKERERE EERETX ' &
RZE—NFRERRIE DS E1EX2,064,000
BT e

-



(if)

(iii)

(iv)

On 14 November 2018, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN4”) of principal value of
HK$24,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in PRC, #¥II:Z & 7
F B % # W B BR A 7], which is principally engaged in
developing and designing mechanical equipment, maturity
of three years from date of issue. LN4 bears fixed interest
at 10% per annum and is measured at amortised cost.

On 14 November 2018, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN5”) of principal value of
HK$24,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in PRC, FIII:ZE &
& W 3% #5 A IR 2 7], which is principally engaged in
providing integrated R&D, design, sales and after-sales
service in packaging equipment, maturity of three years
from dates of issue. LN5 bears fixed interest at 10% per
annum and is measured at amortised cost.

On 8 November 2019, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN6”) of principal value of
HK$33,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in PRC, ;& Il # /& & {4
BEAKMERE AR A A, which is principally engaged
in aircraft leasing, with maturity of two years from dates
of issue. LN6 bears fixed interest at 5% per annul and is
measured at amortised cost.

Loan notes BERER
Interest receivables JiE U F) 2
Impairment losses VERIEN -
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8H

Less: current portion

Non-current portion

o B EAER o

FEBNER B o3

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

RZZE—N\F+—A+HB  A5EERE
BLTERER(ERZE4L]) e BEA
24,000,000/ 7T + B — & A F B A2 5 AL
AEBNBYE=ZHCFIEEBA S EHK
WAERAR  TEXEHREIERABTRR
P17 RETHBHEASFERY - BERE
B4R B & F F R A0%:T B F B K 3 8 8 AR
KETE

RZZ—N\F+—A+WHB  AEEERE
BLTERER(ERZEES])  A~eBEA
24,000,000/ 7T + B — & A F B A2 8 AL
AEBNBIYE=ZHCFIEEDERME
HERAR  TENEREDEZBOERSE
WEE - R HEREBRRE) BT RE
THHERFIFEH - EXZESZE T F 7|
E10%:T EF B RIZEHK AT E -

R—ZZE—NFE+—ANB AEEERE
BLTERER(ERZEEE])  AeBEA
33,000,000/ 7T * B — [ AR H B AKX 2 B FL
AEBNBIYE=ZHCFINMBERE QK
MEREERDR FERERELAE) 5
T REBETBHEMTIE - BRERKGEK
B EF M E5%xT E | B RIZE K AT & ©

2019 2018
—B-hE —E-N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FH#& T
81,000 59,500
5,676 1,519
(5,619) (4,992)
81,057 56,027
(5,144) (10,417)
75,913 45,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
At 1 January n—H—H 4,992 —
Release upon disposals & (o] (1,971) —
Provision made for the year FREE 2,598 4,992
At 31 December RTr= == 5,619 4,992
The carrying amount of the loan notes approximates to its fair EXREENERSEEOLEARE -
value.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is RmER  ZTAEERRMOAEREENERE
the carrying amount of the loan notes. Gk
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FAET
Trading securities (note a) R 5 &% (Kiita) 7,286 31,812
Convertible bonds designated at BEREBEAABERERZERIERZ
financial assets at FVTPL (note b) CREENABIRES (HZb) 19,520 39,715
Private equity fund designated at EBEARAAEBEREZENERZ
financial assets at FVTPL (note c) CREENLEES (MiFc) — 13,542
26,806 85,069
Notes: B
(a) Trading securities (a) XEEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current assets: MEBEE :
Equity securities held for trading REXGMBENERES
at market value Bmi5EE
—Listed in Hong Kong —BABLEM 7,286 31,812

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Notes: (Continued) Mz - (&)
(a) Trading securities (Continued) (a) REFZ (&)
At the end of reporting period, details of the Group’s major listed R|EMR  AEBFE LRSI FNFBEN
equity securities are as follows: T
Accumulated
fair value losses
on investment
recognized in
the consolidated
Proportion Net assets financial
As at of investee’s attributable to statement
Stock name 31 Dec capital owned Cost Market value  the investment during the year
REFERR
REBBHRE
R+=A ERRRE REERE AERZRE
REELE SEr=[ AREFLH 23 miE BERE ZRAPAERR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET TET TAT
Hong Kong
R
On Real International Holdings Limited 2019 6.79% 11,100 5,421 4,075 (5,679)
2018 6.04% 11,656 14,150 4,723 2,494
ZRERZERER DA
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited 2019 4.59% 4,738 1,556 3,672 (3,182)
2018 1.62% 8,317 8,404 1,751 87
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited
Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited 2019 0.31% 228 147 276 (81)
2018 - — — — —
ELReREEERAR
China Creative Digital Entertainment Limited 2019 0.49% 178 110 119 (68)
2018 0.21% 6,404 337 4,852 (6,067)
HEAIEREREERAA
Evershine Group Holdings Limited 2019 0.10% 66 52 13 (14)
2018 0.00% 74 74 6 1
KREEZRERRA
Kinetix System Holding Limited 2019 = = = = =
2018 5.15% 12,490 5,973 2,103 (6,518)
EEERBBAA
Luxxu Group Limited (previously known as 2019 — — — — —
Time2U International Holding Limited) 2018 0.81% 1,290 1,178 4,374 (112)
B REERAR (A1 AR B R E R ER
BEAT)
China 33 Media Group Limited 2019 — — — — —
2018 0.90% 1,605 1,139 4,487 (466)
HE==BEERAR
No dividend income received for both years. W8 F ¥ R W B AR B Es o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-T

“NETEAE+ HIEEE

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Trading securities (Continued)
Unless otherwise specified, all of the above investments are
directly held by the Company.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

On Real International Holdings Limited, incorporated in
Cayman lIslands, is principally engaged in the designing,
manufacturing and selling of two-way radio and baby
monitors on original design manufacturing basis.

Classified Group (Holdings) Limited, incorporated in Cayman
Islands, is principally engaged in restaurant operations in
Hong Kong.

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited, incorporated in
Cayman Islands, is principally engaged in sales of biometrics
identification devices and other devices and accessories and
provision of auxiliary and other services.

China Creative Digital Entertainment Limited, incorporated
in Bermuda, is principally engaged in cultural and
entertainment business in China.

Evershine Group Holdings Limited, incorporated in Hong
Kong, is principally engaged in the construction, contracting
works, construction materials trade, property leasing,
furniture business, cemetery business, money lending
business and mobile application business.

Kinetix Systems Holdings Limited, incorporated in Cayman
Islands, is principally engaged in provision of information
technology (“IT”) infrastructure solutions services, IT
development solutions services and IT maintenance and
support services.

Luxxu Group Limited, incorporated in Cayman Islands, is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of own-
branded watches and jewelleries, including but not limited
to diamond watches, tourbillon watches and luxury jewellery
watches, OEM watches and third-party watches Kinetix
System is mainly engaged in provision of information
technology infrastructure solution services.

(viii) China 33 Media Group Limited, incorporated in Cayman

Islands, is principally engaged in the provision of advertising
services of printed media for railway networks, outdoor
advertising spaces on railway stations in the PRC and online
platforms, film and entertainment investment in Hong Kong
and the PRC and prepaid card business in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s trading securities of
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,715,000 (2018: Nil) were
pledged to a securities broker to secure margin loan borrowed by
the Group.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

Bt -

(a)

(%)

R 5 & % (%)
BEZEER ARREEKELIMERE -

(i) ZREBERERLA  RESESTMX
Mo EEBRERE i?&%ﬁﬁﬂmﬁi
ENHEREME TSR -

(i) Classified Group (Holdings) Limited * /A f 2
HEFMERY  FZREBRLEEELE -

(i) EXBHENMBEEBRERAF  RASHSHE
%&4 Igﬁ$%iimaﬂﬁf“ﬁ&

Hih R EREAEANEE A KRR ERM
HARE o
(iv) TREIZHBREER AR REFEZM

IDAVAN EEF¢I%$XW%%¥%°

(v) XRBREBEZERERAR REBEMAL
TERFREE BEIR BMRH  YWEH
E BRER  ARER BEREBLRBERE

BER-

(vi) BEZERBRA RASHESEMAL -
FERFRMHE &mﬁﬁnﬁ”“mmﬂ
E%%%\Wﬁ%%&ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ%éﬁﬁ
BRE -

(vii) IR EBEERAR  RASHESEMA L
FTEREFLEERHEETREFRERKE -

BEETRREORSE RBRHXRKEZK
Bk  MIEEEREK  F= kK - fEE
ERFREESRMERREHERTRRTY -

(vii) FR==BHER AR  RHASHSZEMMK
Vo EEREATESHASETIEESE 5
HUPINEENRERTARHEES R
REBRPEAREEY RIREILE  UER
EANRBEEMNFES -

T—hF+-A=+—R8 A&£EEREED
17wom%mnfz—ﬂi BN SELFER
FRECL  ARBSAEBREANRESER -



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Notes: (Continued) Mz - (&)
(b) Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL (b) BEARAAEBEREZRIBEZEREENTH
BES
At the end of reporting period, details of major unlisted RBEHR  TENRAAERBEERIERZ S
convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL are as BMEEMNF LELTMAERESNFBAT :
follows:
Accumulated
fair value
losses on
investment
recognised
in the
Interest  consolidated
income financial
recognised statements
Place of As at during the during the
Name of investee Incorporation 31 December Cost year year Fair value
RAEER
REEHH
REFER BRABRZ
Wnt+t=AH BRZ REZRG
BREDNEARB oF 0 B 3L it B Er=1[ % FEBA DREBE DRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TERT THET TET
Openroad Corporate Services Limited Hong Kong 2019 — — — —
(“cB1”)
BEECERBERLDF e 2018 — 1,261 — —
(MM EZ1])
Profit Gain Finance Limited (“CB2") Hong Kong 2019 — 1,534 — —
REMBERAR([ATERES2]) EE 2018 20,000 1,800 3,634 19,625
Cross Consultants Limited (“CB3") Hong Kong 2019 — — — —
Cross Consultants Limited i 2018 — 2,345 = =
([FTEBES3])
Openroad Professional Assurance Hong Kong 2019 — — — —
Limited (“CB4”)
EEEEXEZFFARAA e 2018 — 2,345 — —
([FTE#mER4])
HF Financial Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 2019 19,700 1,576 (2,146) 19,520
Limited (“CB5”)
EReRER(FE)EREEAA N 2018 19,700 1,575 (1,856) 20,090
([ATEE#E%5])
All the above investments are directly held by the Company. RNATIHEEAB LIFREERSE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-T

“NETEAE+ HIEEE

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL

(Continued)
Hull model was used for valuation of CB5. The inputs into the
valuation model of CB5 as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

CB5
BRESS

Subscription date
BERY
Original maturity date
RNZHAH
Extended maturity date
fER#&E 3 E
Coupon rate (per annul)
ERHE
Exeruse price per share
BRITEER
Risk free rate

2]k
Expected life (years)
BHFH(F)
Expected volatility
KR
Expected dividend yield
BER S M EE
Valuation methodology
ER %

Fair value performed by:

RAERFGEE

On 20 March 2018 and 18 July 2018, the Company entered
into extension agreements with the investees, to extend the
maturity dates of CB2 and CB5 to 13 April 2019 and 28 July 2019
respectively. On 8 November 2019, the Company disposed CB2
and exchanged for the LN6 as detailed in note 22 to the financial
statements, resulting a loss on deemed disposal of approximately
HK$1,845,000 recognised in 2019, Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Ravia is an independent firm of professional valuer appointed by
the Company to carry out the valuation of the Group’s convertible
bond designated at financial assets at FVTPL.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

VEE

(b)

(%)

EEARAAEREZRIEZEMEENTE
BEH (&)
AERESSFEAGRERLETHE R=2F— N
F+=-A=+—H T%ﬁ%%ﬁmmﬁ&im%
AfTF :

31 December 2019
“E-AET-A=t-H

28 July 2016
ZT-R"EtA=Zt/\B
28 July 2019
—T-AFtA=t/\B
28 July 2020
—Z-ZF+AZFNA
8%

8%

HK$14,723

14,7235 7T

2.12%

2.12%

0.57

0.57

70%

70%

Hull Model

HRER

Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited (“Ravia")
HERRAEEFAFTRAA
(MwE)

R=ZFE—NEFEF=ZA=F+BHER=_Z—N\FEtA+AN
B ARQRIEFEEARGNERGZE - D5
ERESFIRIERESSHIHATCEE-"Z
—NWEMA+=AR-_ZE—NAEFE+A=Z+NR-
$@ﬂ%:§fn$+fHAEﬁETTaﬁﬁ
52 DU BE 7% R R M s 225 il 2 B R E 6
R =T — niﬁwﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁm%pm%
T o BUHERE  REME2ERSRAERZZR
AAREEHEHAABER -

WERARBARINAKEEERERARE E
BsRIECEREENAERESETHE
Y EEMERT



Notes: (Continued)

(c) Private equity fund designated at financial assets at FVTPL

On 29 June 2018, the Group had subscribed 39.25% of a private
equity fund (“Fund Investment”) incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, HF Pre-IPO Fund, of principal value of HK$19,001,000.
As of 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Fund Investment
was approximately HK$13,542,000. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the unrealised loss recognised of the Fund
Investment approximately HK$5,459,000.

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Hanfaith Property Agency Limited,
an independent third party to the Company to dispose the
entire interest of Fund Investment held by the Company at cash
consideration of HK$9,000,000, which is settled by 18 installment
payments of HK$500,000 each. The first instalment shall be
due on the agreement date. The consideration receivable was
recorded under “other receivables” at 31 December 2019. Upon
the disposal date, the loss on disposal of HK$4,542,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019. In the opinion
of the directors, no effects of the time value of money is taken
into the account of the carrying value of consideration receivable,
as the financial impact was immaterial.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Hiat - (&)

(c) EERRAABENREERIEZEHEENILE

2

R=ZZFE—N\FXNAZ-+NB TEERE—EE
FeS MKz FEESHF Pre-IPO Fund
(THEE K& |)H39.25% * AN {E(H 419,001,000
BT -BE_ZT—N\E+-_A=+—"08 #&&
BRI D IEL A13,542,00087C - REE —T—/\
F+_A=1T—HLFE EScREERNRE
I 18 49 55,459,000 7T °

ARARARZE—NF+_A=+—"HBEARAB
37 %5 = J7Hanfaith Property Agency Limited# & T
—EEWFE - Ut - AR H LA (E9,000,000
BLRHEARARARESREMF 2 HBRE -
REKS18H4E  §HI500,000/8 T - B EHE
R BBEN ZERRKER-_ZE—-NF+=
AR=+—HetATEMEHRZHE] - REEB B3
HE-_ZT - NF+_A=1+—"BLEFEBRALE
E5184,542,0008 7T - EER A  BRUBTET
AN EBRRBEETZERFENKEEELE -

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Unlisted equity investments designated 5 & & A S0 BN E 2 W &= 51 BR
at financial assets at FVTOCI R IE E TR ERE 29,400 35,176
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

On 6 June 2018 and 7 December 2018, the Group had
subscribed 18.18% and 20% equity interest of a Hong Kong
incorporated private entity and an Anguilla incorporated
private entity, HF Finance Limited (the “HF Finance”) and
Perfect Path, which are engaged in money lending business
and gold mining business at considerations of HK$8,000,000
and HK$18,500,000 respectively. As of 31 December 2018,
the fair value of the equity investments was approximately
HK$6,176,000 and HK$29,000,000 respectively.

Despite the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, however, under contractual arrangements, the other
shareholders control the composition of the board of directors
and have control over Perfect Path. The directors of the
Company consider that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path, and it is therefore the unlisted
equity investments are designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI.

On 8 November 2019, the Company has disposed of HF
Finance and exchanged for the LN6 as detailed in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements, resulting a loss on
deemed disposal of approximately HK$1,676,000 recognised
in 2019.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

R-ZE—NENANBER=-_ZE—N\HE+_A
+ B XN& B 575 K E 8,000,000 % T &
18,500,000 TR R BB MK I T A E 8
ERMBEERAR([EEME]) RREENT
A2 B9 FL A B B2Perfect Pathf18.18% 520%
R EDRREREEBRBERRER - &
BT \F+_A=1+—8 BERENDIR
B 5 Bl 49 %6,176,000/% 7T 29,000,000/ 7T °

1B & AN &£ E + GPerfect Pathf20%% R & - &
o REAOTHE  HUREZEFESESSHAR
AR - W% HIPerfect Path - K AR EER AR
& B $Perfect Pathtf EEAFZE H - AL IF £
MBEEREEEAEALERE M 2R K=Y
NERMEE -

ARAR_ZE-AhE+ - ANBLETER
B LIEUAR S B IS IR 225 i 2 B 5K
EE6 MR _FT-NAFRIABFELEBERD
1,676,000/% 7T °



Income approach were used for valuation of the remaining
equity interests. Ravia is an independent firm of professional
valuer appointed by the Company to carry out the valuations
of the Group’s unlisted equity investments designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI. The inputs into the valuation
models as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Perfect Path
Perfect Path

Subscription date

R B 5

Total number of shares held

P #5 B 10 48 28

Subscription price

RIEE

Proportion of investee’s capital owned
WIRERREENEARLE

Dividend income received during the year
REEANE KR &S WA

Net assets attributable to the investment (Note)
RE NS EEFE(H:T)

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised during the year
AEEANEROAAE K, (FE)
Expected dividend yield

TE HA AR B s

Discount rate

B IR

Valuation methodology

(CREWIDZS

Fair value performed by:

RAERFEHEE

Note: Figures were based on the management accounts as at 31
December 2019 provided by the investees.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

ERWNEF AR RIRE - B RARRRERR
AREEER/BANEBEREMEZERSIRZ S
BMEEMFLMEREREETHENBELERM
BT R_F-—NAFt+_A=1t—BREEER
ZBEAWMT :

31 December 2019
—®-AEt+t=A=t+-8

7 December 2018
—E-N\E+=ZAtH
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,000/% 7T

20%

20%

HK$30,697,000
30,697,000/% 7T

12%
12%
Income Model
I AR R
Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited (“Ravia”)
HEIRKAT BB AGRAA
(Mwegl)

Mt BEEREEREARAAREN - —HhFE+=A
=+—HEHEEKRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Amounts due from securities brokers represent deposits
placed with securities brokers for the trading of listed
investments which are unsecured, bearing interest at a
range between 0% to 0.001% (2018: 0.0005% and 0.001%)
per annum and repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is
disclosed in respect of amounts due from securities brokers.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the Group’s
business nature.

Amounts due to securities brokers represent credit facility
provided by securities brokers, bearing interest at a range
between 8% to 10.375% (2018: 8% to 10.375%) per annum
and repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in
respect of amounts due to securities brokers. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

Other payables and accruals Hih Nk R ETE R
Unclaimed dividend payables H) R S8 HR A FE 1 AR 2

On 4 June 2018, the Group had obtained an unsecured and
unguaranteed loan at the rate of 8% per annum with principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 from its substantial shareholder,
namely Mr. Chen Chien Yeh (the “Shareholder’s Loan”).
The effective interest rate applied was 7.7% per annum and
the Shareholder’'s Loan was mature on 6 October 2019 and
settled in full during the year.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

BRBHAELREABEHFELARZLETEER
MEREEHFCLHTER  EAEERA  20%
Z0.001% (== — /\4F : 0.0005%Z= 0.001%) Y
FRRAEFE  WARBKERESR - WERHR
ERESCLTERERRIT - ARREER
BCBERASEMNERMS  RESTILELE
INMEE -

BRHBFCLCAEABFCLRENEE R
& BN F8%E10.375% (=T — )\ 5 : 8%%E
10.375%) M EF KT EF B - WHIRE KER
BE VERENESCLHRERERRIIT
RAAREZEZRE  AERAEEMNEREE K
e D AT I R IME(E o

2019 2018

S —B-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
1,343 3,797

4 4

1,347 3,801

RZEBE—NFENANA  AEEEEHEFERRE
PR 7 2 ST HE R FI R 8% £ 15 N £ B A 30,000,000
BITHEKFAEERER(REERK]) - BA
NEBRFEFNRET7%  ZBEBRREFNR_Z—AN
FTARNBHBIRAFEERBERLS -



As at 31 December 2019, the Company had outstanding five
promissory notes to four individuals who are independent
to the Group with an aggregated principal value of
HK$19,920,000. These promissory notes bear interest at
rates ranging from 6.5% to 8% per annum and are due for
repayments ranging from 24th months to 64th months at the
end of reporting period.

On initial recognition, the fair value of promissory notes
issued by the Company were determined based on the
present value of the contractual stream of future cash flows
discounted at rates ranging from 5.5% to 6.69% per annum.
The discount rates are determined with reference to the yield
rate with credit rating and duration similar to the promissory
notes.

The details of the promissory notes for the year are set out
below:

At 1 January m—A—H

Imputed interest charged iy & ER ) A1) 2

Redemption during the year RAFEEANER

Interest paid during the year RAFERIZFFE

At 31 December R+-A=+—H

Less: Amount due within one year B R—FRIHNSE
classified as current liabilities SERRBAE

Amount due over one year classified as R — S4B HHN L5 -

non-current liabilities PEAFERDER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

R-ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—8  ARRBERRE
FEEBNANZETORABINAEBHMEA
BN % #(E 519,920,000 T - % AN ZIR
6.5%ZE8%MFFEKTEF B + WK HE BRI
HE241E B =641 A BIHEE -

M TERE - ARRMETHANENRRETD
RIE G #) R 2RI &7 PA5.5%E6.69%F F X7 3R
FSHREETE TRXDL2EZEEFRREH
BRI AR L B ek RORFESE o

RERNBBANENFBHINGT :

2019 2018
—EF-hF —FT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TR
20,754 29,846
1,317 1,618
(300) (8,530)
(1,514) (2,180)
20,257 20,754
(337) (834)
19,920 19,920
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$276,282,000 (2018:
HK$255,228,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$1 each,
at 1 January 2018

Increase during the year

Ordinary share of HK$1 each at
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Capital reorganisation (note 2)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
31 December 2019

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
at 1 January 2018

Issue of shares on placement (note 1)

Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
at 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019
Capital reorganisation (note 2)
Rights issue (note 3)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
31 December 2019

EE

R=ZZE—NF—HF—H
BHREEIS T ER

AN [ R 1 0

RBEEBHR AEEBRFNARBEBIBELYD
276,282,000% 7T (= & — J\ £ : 255,228,000 /&
7C) Al R VB4 S5 R R FE o B B 2R 2R A1 7R /9 1
ARG ARNELBEEEERELREE
o ARG E B AERELE -

Number of shares

IR 12 8 B

100,000,000
900,000,000

RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—8HK

—E—-NAF—HA—H
EREEISTHTERER
RE AN B4 (H7772)

R-F-AF+-_HA=+—8H

BREEA1E LK T B
CRTRAR :
R—ZE—NE—A—H

FREE1S T E @R

RERBITRM (A2

1,000,000,000
9,000,000,000

10,000,000,000

85,928,950

33,980,000

R=_FE-—NF+=-_A=+—H8K

—E-h&—H—H

EREBEIE THERR
WA B4 (BT at2)
AR (A1 i23)

R-ZF-NAF+-_A=1+—8

FREEO0.1B T & B

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

119,908,950

239,817,900

359,726,850

Amount
k]
HK$’000
FET

100,000
900,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

85,929

33,980

119,909
(107,918)
23,982

3549173



Notes:

On 11 May 2018, the Company and a placing agent entered into
a placing agreement in respect of the placement of 14,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$1 each to independent investors at a price
of HK$0.79 per share (“Placement 1”). The Placement 1 was
completed on 29 May 2018.

Details and the results of the Placement 1 are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 May 2018 and 29 May
2018.

On 21 September 2018, the Company and another placing agent
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement
of 19,980,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$1.00 per share (“Placement 2”). The
Placement 2 was completed on 12 October 2018.

Details and the result of the Placement 2 are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 September 2018 and
12 October 2018.

The Company has been de-registered in the Cayman Islands and
duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda and the change of domicile became effective on
2 April 2019 (Hong Kong time) (the “Change of Domicile”). Details
of the Change of Domicile were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 23 January 2019, 25 January 2019 and
4 April 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 4 February
2019.

On 23 January 2019, the Company announced to implement the
capital reorganisation after the change of domicile becoming
effective as follows:

(i) Reduction of Share Premium — the entire amount standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
was reduced to nil and the credit arising from such
reduction was transferred to an existing account of the
Company designated as the contributed surplus account
of the Company. Thereafter, the credit of the contributed
surplus account of the Company was applied in full towards
offsetting the entire amount of the accumulated losses of
the Company as permitted under the New Bye-laws and the
Companies Act.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

R=ZZT—NFRA+—8  ARARERERETL
BR & ek - A AR m B 1% & & B & 14,000,000
fERmEIS TR EBR -  EEERAER0T
BLT(EEEE]) EEEEIER=2Z—N\F
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

Notes: (Continued)

2

(Continued)

(ii) Capital Reduction — the par value of each of the issued
existing shares of the Company was reduced from HK$1.00
to HK$0.10 per issued existing share of the Company by the
cancellation of the paid up share capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.90 per issued existing share of the
Company by way of a reduction of capital, such that the par
value of the issued existing shares of the Company was
reduced to HK$0.10 each. The credit arising from the Capital
Reduction was transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act and was applied for such purposes as permitted by
all applicable laws and the Memorandum of Continuance
and the New Bye-laws of the Company and as the Board
considers appropriate; and

(iii) Share sub-division — immediately following the Capital
Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued existing
Shares with par value of HK$1.00 each was subdivided into
10 new Shares with par value of HK$0.10 each.

The Capital Reorganisation had become effective after 9:00
a.m. (Hong Kong time) on 18 April 2019. Details of the above
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
23 January 2019, 25 January 2019, 11 March 2019, 4 April
2019 and 23 April 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated 4 February 2019.

The Company has completed the Rights Issue on the basis of
two Rights Shares for every one Share held on the Record Date
at the Subscription Price of HK$0.28 per Rights Share to raise
approximately HK$67.15 million before expenses by issuing
239,817,900 Rights Shares to the Qualifying Shareholders.

References were made to (1) the announcements of the Company
dated 18 July 2019, 30 July 2019, 2 August 2019, 13 August
2019 and 18 October 2019, respectively, (2) the circular of the
Company dated 21 August 2019 (the “Circular”’) and the poll
result announcement of the Company dated 12 September 2019
in relation to, amongst others, the Rights Issue, and (3) the
prospectus of the Company dated 25 September 2019. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the Circular.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2019, 72.8% (2018:
52.5%) of the shares were in public hands.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The following is the statement of financial position of the NTAERRTR=_ZE—NEFERZZE—N\F+=A
Company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018: =+ —HABBFRRAEK
2019 2018
== j‘L ﬂi 3 _/\EF
No(e HK$’000 HK$ 000
VioNz3 FERT FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M= - BB MRE 10 19
Right-of-use assets TREEE 475 =
Interests in subsidiaries SR R/NC T ¥ 27 34
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H WK - e KA RIE 3,000 —
Loan notes ERER 75,913 45,610
79,425 45,663
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H bW - e RBERK 20,874 15,764
Loan notes BEREE 5,144 10,417
Financial assets at FVTPL ZARERBREEINEKZ
SREE 26,806 85,069
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAAEREMEE KRS
FIfRz 2 REE 29,400 35,176
Due from securities brokers JE UK 78 5 45 42 5B 12 12
Bank balances RIT 4 A 28,187 4,734
110,423 191,972
Current liabilities nEBAE
Due to securities brokers & 11 58 77 A8 40 3K IR 2,011 5,190
Other payables and accruals HEmENR RERER 1,347 3,801
Lease liabilities HEBE 282 —
Shareholder’s loan &R E — 31,710
Amount due to a subsidiary & B B & R FRIE 7,421 7,413
Promissory notes AR 337 834
11,398 48,048
Net current assets RBEEFE 99,025 102,224
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARE 178,450 147,887
Non-current liabilities kFBER
Lease liabilities HEEE 208 —
Promissory notes AT E 19,920 19,920
20,128 19,920
Net assets EEFE 158,322 127,967
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital [N 35,973 119,909
Reserves i (a) 122,349 8,058
Total equity 185 % 158,322 127,967

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 20 March 2020.

Wu Ming Gai
A 8% £

Director

EF
COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

o

Chan Carman Wing Yan

BR #k iR
Director

EF

RIE-_TF=A_t+HESEgHERKET



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

Note: Htat -
(a) Movements of the Company’s reserve (a) AN B E
Financial
Convertible assets at
Share  Contributed  bonds equity FVTOCI  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RORE
RE#ZE
TERES K@
R EE BEAER RERE SREERRB 2t hE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
As 1 January 2018 R-Z-N\5-F-H 203,918 = 171 = (122,731) 81,358
Loss and total comprehensive income FEFERZANE (RX)AE
(expenses) for the year — - — 8,676 (78,435) (69,759)
Issue of shares on placement REERETRH (3,541) = = — = (3,541)
Redemption of convertible bonds BEAERES = = (171) = m -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=+-H 200,377 - - 8,676 (200,995) 8,058
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 ARG BREERE16RF 2 - - - = (9) (9)
At 1 January 2019 (restated) WZZE-nE-R—H
(BEi) 200,377 — — 8,676 (201,004) 8,049
Loss and total comprehensive income FEFERZANE (AR AE
(expenses) for the year - - - 400 (35,331) (34,931)
Capital reorganisation RAEHR (200,377) 107,918 - - 200,377 107,918
Rights Issue i 41,313 — — — = 41,313
Transfer of reserve BREE - = = 1,824 (1,824) =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nF+-A=1+-AH 41,313 107,918 - 10,900 (37,782) 122,349

Annual Report 20195



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium represents the amount by which
the issue price of shares exceeds the par value of
those shares and is distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The convertible bonds equity reserve represents
the value of the unexercised equity component of
convertible bonds issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve represents
the cumulative net change in fair value of equity
investments held at the end of the reporting period
and recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity instruments in note 4(f) to
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) The contributed surplus of the Company arose
as a result of the Capital Reorganisation that the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company was reduced
to nil and the credit arising from such reduction
be transferred to an existing account of the
Company designated as the contributed surplus
account of the Company. Thereafter, the amount
approximately HK$200.4 million standing to the
credit of the contributed surplus account of the
Company was applied in full towards offsetting
the entire amount of the accumulated losses of
the Company; and

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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(b) the par value of each of the issued shares was
reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 per issued
share by the cancellation of the paid up share
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.90
per issued share by way of a reduction of capital,
such that the par value of the issued Shares
was reduced to HK$0.10 each. The credit arising
from the Capital Reduction was transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company
within the meaning of the Companies Act and
be applied for such purposes as per-mitted by
all applicable laws and the Memorandum of
Continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company
and as the Board considers appropriate.

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the
Group’s net assets of approximately HK$165,716,000 (2018:
HK$135,391,000) divided by the Company’s ordinary shares
in issue of 359,762,850 as at 31 December 2019 and the
ordinary shares in issue of 119,908,950 as at 31 December
2018.

As disclosed in notes 22(i) & (iv), 23(b) and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group
had subscribed a loan note with principal value of
HK$33,000,000. The subscription of loan note was
satisfied by way of (i) the disposals of LN1, LN2, and
LN3 with fair values of approximately HK$9,186,000
in total; (ii) the disposal of CB2 with fair value of
approximately HK$19,314,000; and (iii) disposal of HF
Finance with fair value of approximately HK$4,500,000
respectively as at their respective dates of disposal.

As disclosed in note 23(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had disposed of
39.25% of a private equity fund at consideration of
approximately HK$9,000,000, which is to be settled
by 18 equal instalments of HK$500,000 each. The
consideration receivable is recorded under “other
receivables” at 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The table set forth below is the detail changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities.

Shareholder’s loan
Lease liabilities
Promissory notes (note 29)

Shareholder’s loan

Convertible bonds — liability
component

Promissory notes (note 29)

1 January
2019

—E-0F
—-A-H
HK$’000

TER

R E 5 31,710
HEBE 275
AN ZE(f7729) 20,754

52,739

1 January
2018
—E-N\F
—A-H
HK$'000
THET

S
|

Bk
s

a3l =5

5—8f

okr

iba)
12,564
AN R (M #29) 29,846

42,410

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

TRANEERAREZHELNA BRI
B EBRASRIRESEY AREEDHE
ENBEBEREEASESARERERDER
MEEHEENRERENBE S RENULS
ENEARERYELANRE S RENRKR
ERENEHAE -

31

Cash Interest  December
flows Addition charges 2019
—E-hE

+=A

BeRE wnE MNEEH =t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TET TER TER
(33,936) — 2,226 —
(355) 556 14 490
(1,814) — 1,317 20,257
(36,105) 556 3,557 20,747
Cash Interest 31 December

flows charges 2018
—E-N\E

Heng FEER +-A=1+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THT FHET

30,000 1,710 31,710
(13,215) 651 —
(10,710) 1,618 20,754

6,075 3,979 52,464



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NF+-A=t+—BLLFE

35.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT B.EERERERME (H)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRLHAEE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow FeRenERTEHBEENBENT -

statements for lease comprise the following:

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FH& T
Within operating cash flows KEREMENRN 14 —
Within financing cash flows BMERESREN 341 —
355 —
These amounts relate to the following: ZECHEENTEEARA :
2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FAET
Lease rental paid BEHEE 355 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=

E-NEF+ZA=+—BLFE

(@) On 29 February 2016, the Company entered into an

investment management agreement (“Investment
Management Agreement”) with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”),
pursuant to which Tiger Securities has agreed to act as
the investment manager of the Company and to provide
investment management services to the Company for a
period of two years commencing from 1 March 2016 and
expiring on 28 February 2018.

According to the Investment Management Agreement,
Tiger Securities shall be entitled to a management fees
of 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000.

On 24 November 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental investment management agreement
(“Supplemental Investment Management Agreement”)
with Tiger Securities, pursuant to which, with effect from
1 January 2017, management fees as set out in the
Investment Management Agreement shall be changed
from 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000 to 1% per
annum on the net asset value as per the management
account of the Company of the preceding month with an
annual cap of HK$2,980,000. Save as above changed,
all other terms and conditions set forth in the Investment
Management Agreement shall remain unchanged, in full
force and effect.

On 28 February 2018, the Company entered into a
renewal agreement with Tiger Securities to renew
the investment management services period from 28
February 2018 to 28 February 2019.

On 28 February 2019 and 28 August 2019, the Company
entered into renewal agreements with Tiger Securities
respectively, to renew the investment management
services period from 28 February 2019 to 31 August 2019
and further extended to 29 February 2020.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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(a)

(Continued)

With effective from 1 September 2019, management fee
to Tiger Securities shall be changed from 1% per annum
on the net asset value as per the management account of
the Company of the preceding month to 0.8% per annum
on the net asset value as per the management account
of the Company of the preceding month with unchanged
annual cap at HK$2,980,000.

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, an executive director of the Company,
is a director and responsible officer of Tiger Securities.

The management fees and incentive fee paid and payable
to Tiger Securities are as follows:

Tiger Securities: RERF:
Management fees &

The above management fees paid or payable to Tiger
Securities are continuing connected transactions (“CCT”")
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but
regarded as de minimis transaction pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules as the CCT had fulfill the
relevant requirements.

On 11 May 2018, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Tiger Securities in respect of the
placement of 14,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The placement was completed on 29 May 2018 and the
placing commission paid or payable to Tiger Securities
are as follows:

Tiger Securities: REES
Commission ke

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors is disclosed in note 15(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NFH+-A=+—BILFE

(a) (&)

BE-Z-NAFALA A ZFREFHNFE
BEEH L EAQREEKRETEERE
M1%EXR R E—BARREEREFEEF
EE0.8% &F FR T - 13%2,980,000
FEIL °

AARYMITEESHRERERFTEIEFNE
ERBEAR -

ENRENEREEFNERERESHOT

2019 2018
—g-n% =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T
1,277 1,474

LRENKENZEERESNEREB(LT
HRADETHASRENIHEBER S ([
BHERS])  Am - BRBECETHREDE
14A.76(N)E - AR EFEX ST EEHR
E AL EREATAERERRKFEHR
5 o

RZFE—NFRA+—H  ARREREF
5513 — A A BB % 14,000,000 08 A A 7] I
BRZEEH::E ZEEN-_T—/\FAHA
ZtHhBAREK  BENSENEEZEFNRE
AemT :

2019 2018
—2-n#F —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE FHT

— 332

(b) AEBTIRERABNFMRGEAMBHRE

15 HBEAAAARTEEL RS
% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFITZA=+—RBILFE

The Group leases an office under operating leases. The AEBEBREBELCEHOAARAE - HE—RVP
leases typically run for an initial period of two years, with an BEHME  ERFREEIHY  BEEABGR
option to renew the lease after that date at which time all YEHER -

terms are renegotiated.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate R-ZEBE-NE+-_A=+—8 K&EERE Lt
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating FEFZAABHEHSERNEARARI N Z2&KIE
leases in respect of land and buildings as follows: HEBBEWOT -
2018
—T-N\F
HK$’000
FHET
Within one year —F A 280

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFERE(FEMEBR/EN) —

280
The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2019: R-ZE—hAhFE+-_A=+—BZHBRARFBW
™~
Particulars of
Place of Principal activities issued share
Name of subsidiary incorporation and place of operation capital Interest held
il N = i B S it B FTEXBREXWE BERITREFE iR
IT Star Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%™
in Hong Kong of US$1
EBELHE BREER, BB 1IREE 13T
2 E B
Datacom Venture Limited British Virgin Islands Inactive in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%
of US$1
EBREAES TER/BE 1IRTE B 13E 7T
2 E B
Studio V Hong Kong Inactive in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%*
e TER/ BB 10,0007% 7T
*  Shares held directly by the Company. * ARREERBRAEZEG
None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the end RIFEHR  SHBRAR W EEITTAMESE
of the reporting period. % o
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On 28 February 2020, the Company entered into
the renewal agreement with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited to renew the investment
management services period end from 29 February 2020
to 31 August 2020.

Since early 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) has spread across China
and other countries and it has affected the business and
economic activities of the Group as well as the Group’s
investees to some extent. The overall financial effect
cannot be reliably estimated as of the approval date
of these consolidated financial statements. The Group
will closely monitor the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and continue to evaluate its impact on the
business, the financial position and operating results of
the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t-—BLFE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—FT—hHF —F-RF —FT—tF —FT-N\FE ZB-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAT FAET FER

Results: g
(Loss) profit attributable to KAREE AEAS
owners of the Company (B8R 316,286 (194,959) (205,508) (78,458) (35,361)
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—EF-hfF —FT-R"F —F—tF —FT-N\F ZB-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THET FA&T FH& T FH& T FHE T
Assets and liabilities: EERERE:
Current assets mENEE 510,039 415,572 220,239 151,217 110,423
Total assets BEE 510,196 415,657 220,268 196,846 189,821
Current liabilities mE e E 5,334 33,835 25,314 41,535 3,977
Total liabilities weE 23,015 35,415 45,534 61,455 24,105
Shareholders’ funds KRES 487,181 380,242 174,734 135,391 165,716

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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